BATLIBOI & PUROHIT

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Volkswagen Finance Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of Volkswagen Finance Private
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the
Statement of Standalone Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Standalone Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the
“Standalone Financial Statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for
the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the
aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS™) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state
of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, the profit and total comprehensive income, changes in
equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

As mentioned in note 47 to the Standalone Financial Statements, the Company has made investments in and
advanced loans (including interest accrued) of Rs. 9,019.71 lakhs and 8,696.09 lakhs respectively to its
subsidiary Kuwy Technology Service Private Limited. The accumulated losses of this subsidiary are Rs.
12,179 lakhs as at March 31, 2023 and it’s net worth is negative. The auditors of the subsidiary company
have included a paragraph in their audit report regarding Material Uncertainty relating to the subsidiary's
ability to continue as a Going Concern. Further, the auditors of the subsidiary have qualified their audit
opinion relating to remeasurement of the liability arising on the compulsory convertible preference shares
held by the Company in the subsidiary as at March 31, 2023. Owing to the aforementioned, we are unable to
comment upon adjustments, if any, that may be required to the carrying value of the aforesaid investments
and loans.

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements’ section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the ICAT’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our qualified opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other

information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s
Report, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s repo
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In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate 1ntemal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.
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Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a

going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and except for the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section,
obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) Except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section,
and that the Company does not have a server physically located in India for the daily backup of the
books of account and other books and papers maintained in electronic mode, in our opinion, proper
books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books.

¢) The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Statement of Standalone Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Standalone Cash
Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account.

d) Except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section, in
our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under

section 133 of the Act, read together with the relevant Rules made thereunder.

e¢) The matter described in Basis for Qualified Opinion section, in our opinion, may have an adverse

effect on the functioning of the Company. FPURAN
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f)

g)

h)

),

V. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the yep’"/?_s il O-'“-.\\\
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On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023 and
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,
2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

The qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are
as stated in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section and paragraph 2. b) above.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements of the Company as at March 31, 2023 and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”, wherein we have expressed a modified opinion.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
provisions of section 197 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

1; The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone financial statements — Refer Note 35 to the standalone financial statements.

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2023.

iv.  (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)
by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the
Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b)
above, contain any material misstatement.
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vi.  Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of
account using accounting software which has a feature of recording trail (edit log) facility is
applicable to the Company with effect from April 1, 2023 and accordingly reporting under
Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the financial

year ended March 31, 2023.

For BATLIBOI & PUROHIT
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Reg. No.101048W

S
Janak Mehta T o

Partner
Membership No. 116976

Place: Mumbai
Date: September 21, 2023
ICAI UDIN: 23116976 BGXTY08683
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Annexure - A to the Independent Auditors’ Report
(Referred to under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the
members of Volkswagen Finance Private Limited of even date)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the
books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that:

i In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:

(@) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and relevant
details of right-of-use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

(b) The property, plant and equipment were physically verified during the previous
year by the management in accordance with a regular programme of verification
which, in our opinion, provides for physical verification of all the property, plant
and equipment at reasonable intervals. According to the information and
explanation given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties
disclosed in the standalone financial statements are held in the name of the
Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including
Right of Use assets) or intangible assets during the year. Accordingly, paragraph
3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceedings have
been initiated, or were pending, during the year against the Company for holding
any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of
1688) and rules made thereunder.

ii (a) The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause
3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) During the year, the Company did not have existing sanctioned working capital
limits in excess of Rs. 5 crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks on the basis of
security of its current assets. Hence, reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is
not applicable.

iii The Company has granted unsecured / secured loans to its subsidiary company and
other parties, during the year, in respect of which:

(a) The Company’s principal business was to give loans therefore reporting under
Clause 3(iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable.
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(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
terms and conditions of the grant of loans, prima facie, are not prejudicial to the
Company’s interest.

Continuation Sheet

(c) In respect of the loans/advances in the nature of loan, the schedule of repayment of
principal and payment of interest has been stipulated by the Company. Considering
that the Company was engaged in the business of granting loans, the entity-wise
details of the amount, due date for payment and extent of delay (that has been
suggested in the Guidance Note on CARO 2020 issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India for reporting under this clause) have not been reported since it
is not practicable to furnish such details owing to the voluminous nature of the data
generated in the normal course of Company’s business. Further except for the
instances where there are delays or defaults in repayment of principal and/or
interest and in respect of which the Company has recognised necessary provisions
in accordance with the principles of Ind AS and the guidelines issued by the RBI
for Income Recognition and Asset Classification (which has been disclosed by the
Company in Note 38 to the standalone financial statements), the parties are
repaying the principal amounts, as stipulated, and are also regular in payment of
interest, as applicable.

(d) In respect of loans/advances in nature of loans, there are no amounts which are
overdue for more than 90 days as at March 31, 2023.

(e) The Company’s principal business was to give Loans therefore reporting under
Clause 3(iii)(e) of the Order is not applicable.

(f) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment
during the year. Hence, reporting under clause 3(iii)(f) is not applicable.

iv In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there
are no loans, investments, guarantees, and securities granted in respect of which
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013 are applicable and
hence not commented upon.

v According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits from the public in accordance with the provisions of section
73 to 76 or any relevant provisions of the Act and rules framed thereunder.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

vi The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government
under subsection (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business
activities carried out by the Company. Hence, reporting under clause (vi) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(a)

(b)

(a)

(b)

(c)

In Respect of Statutory Dues:

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records, the Company has generally been regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Services tax, provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income-tax, value added tax and cess and other
material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities. According
to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of Goods and Services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income-tax, value added tax and cess and other material statutory dues were in
arrears as at March 31, 2023 for a period of more than six months from the date
they became payable.

According to information and explanations given to us, the following dues of
income tax and service tax have not been deposited on account of dispute:

Name of | Forum where the | Amount of dues | Period to which
statute dispute is pending | (Rs. In lakhs) amount relates
The  Income | Bombay High Court | 89.20 2014-15
tax Act, 1961
The Income | Commissioner of | 266.21 2015-16
tax Act, 1961 Income Tax
(Appeals)
The  Income | Commissioner of | 318.14 2016-17
tax Act, 1961 Income Tax
(Appeals)
The Central | The Customs, Excise | 5,071.85 April 2011 to
Excise Act, | and  Service tax March 2015
1944 Appellate  Tribunal April 2015 to
(CESTAT) June 2017
The  Central | The Customs, Excise | 516.87 2015-16 and
Excise Act, | and  Service tax 2016-17
1944 Appellate  Tribunal
(CESTAT)

According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions have
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) which was not recorded in the books
of account. Accordingly, paragraph 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable.

Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and explanations given
by the management, the Company did not have any outstanding borrowings during
the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
audit procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared wilful
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government
authority.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year.

Continuation Sheet
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(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures
performed by us, and on an overall examination of the standalone financial
statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not raised any funds
for short term purpose in the current year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix)(d) of the
Order is not applicable.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed by us, the Company has not taken any funds from any entity
or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiary company.

(H According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed by us, the Company has not raised any loans during the year
on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiary company.

X (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed by us, the Company did not raise any money by way of
initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the
year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures
(fully, partly or optionally) during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(x)(b) of the
Order is not applicable.

xi (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the
Company and no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the
year.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion and

based on the audit procedures performed by us, no report under sub-section (12) of
section 143 of the Companies Act in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 was filed with the Central
Government during the year or upto the date of this Report.

(c) As represented to us by the management, no whistle blower complaints were
received by the Company during the year.

Xii In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a ‘nidhi’ company and it has not accepted any deposits.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii)(a), paragraph 3(xii)(b) and paragraph 3(xii)(c) of the
Order is not applicable.

Xiii According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed by us, the Company is in compliance with sections 177 and
188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, for all transactions with the
related parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in
the standalone financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

Xiv a In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company has an internal audit
p pany
system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.
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XV

Xvi

Xvii

Xviii

(®)

(a)

(b)

©

(d)

We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued upto the date
of this Report, for the period under audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed by us, the Company has not entered into non-cash
transactions with directors or persons connected with them. Accordingly,
provisions of section 192 of the Act and paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. However,
the financial assets of the Company (excluding cash and bank balances) are less
than 50% of the Total Assets of the Company and the Company has made an
application to the Reserve Bank of India (‘the RBI’) for surrender of its NBFC
license.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit
procedures performed by us, the Company has made an application to RBI for
surrender of its NBFC license and has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial
activities during the year without a valid certificate of registration (CoR) from the
RBI. Further as represented by the Management, the Company has not engaged in
Housing Finance Activities.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi)(c) of the Order
is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Group (as defined in
the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Direction 2016) does not have
Core Investment Companies (CICs) as part of the Group.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has incurred cash losses amounting to Rs. 20,235.63 lakhs during the
financial year and Rs. 47,372.84 lakhs during the immediately preceding financial
year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xviii) of the order is not applicable to the
company.

Continuation Sheet
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XX

(a)

(b)

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the standalone financial statements and our knowledge of the Board
of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to
believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date
of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts
up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due (Refer
Note 45 in the standalone financial statements).

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit
procedures performed by us, there were no unspent amounts in terms of sub-section
(5) of Section 135 of the Act during the year. Accordingly, second proviso to sub-
section (5) of section 135 of the said Act and paragraph 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit
procedures performed by us, the Company did not have any ongoing project in
terms of Section 135 of the Act during the year. Accordingly, provision of sub-
section (6) of section 135 of the said Act and paragraph 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not
applicable.

For BATLIBOI & PUROHIT
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Reg. No.101048W

B

Janak Mehta

Partner
Membership No. 116976

Place: Mumbai

=

Date: September 21, 2023
ICAI UDIN: 23116976BGXTYO08683

Continuation Sheet
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Annexure - B to the Auditors’ Report

(referred to in paragraph 2(h) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report to the members of the Company of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial statements of
Vol.kswagen Finance Private Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our
audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining Internal Financial Controls
based on the criteria for Internal Control with reference to standalone financial statements established by
the Company considering the essential components of Internal Control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Companies Act,2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's Internal Financial Controls with reference
to standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an Audit of Internal Financial Controls, both issued by ICAI. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain Reasonable Assurance about whether adequate Internal Financial Controls with reference to the
standalone financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the Internal
Financial Controls system with reference to standalone financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of Internal Control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the Auditor’s Judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone
financial statements, whether due to fraud orerror.
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Chartered Accountants

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial statements

A company's Internal Financial Control with reference to standalone financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of Financial Reporting and the
preparation of standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted Accounting Principles. A company's Internal Financial Control with reference to standalone
financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the standalone financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial
statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of
the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies
or procedures may deteriorate.

Qualified Opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the following material
weakness have been identified in the operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls
with reference to standalone financial statements as at March 31, 2023:

a. The Company’s internal control system towards determining the carrying value of loans provided to
subsidiary and its investment in subsidiary, as more fully explained in note 47 to the accompanying
standalone financial statements were not operating effectively due to uncertainties in the judgments
and assumptions made by the Company in such determination, which could result in the Company
not providing for adjustment, if any, that may be required to the carrying values of such loans and
investments and its consequential impact on the accompanying standalone financial statements.

A ‘material weakness’ is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial controls
with reference to standalone financial statements, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the Company's annual or interim standalone financial statements will not be
prevented or detected on a timely basis.

Continuation Sheet
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Chartered Accountants

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the material weakness described above on the
achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate
internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements, and such internal financial
controls with reference to standalone financial statements were operating effectively as of March 31,
2023, based on the internal control with reference to standalone financial statements established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India.

We have considered the material weakness identified and reported above in determining the nature,
timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the
Company as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023, and the material weakness has affected our
opinion on the standalone financial statements of the Company and we have issued a qualified opinion
on the standalone financial statements.

For BATLIBOI & PUROHIT
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Reg. No.101048W - Th N

1
\

T

Janak Mehta
Partner
Membership No. 116976

Place: Mumbai
Date: September 21, 2023
ICAI UDIN: 23116976BGXTYO8683
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Standalone 3slance Shaet as at March 31, 2023

Firigs St tdarch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
{&s. In Lakhs) {Rs. In Lakhs)
ASSETS
Financial assets
fal  Cash ang cash equivaients 2 73,352.1G 53,971.79
b} Bank oalances other than rash 2o cash squivelents 3 872 7.501.41
{c} Receivabiss 4
{l} Trade recetvzbles 126.10 76419
(1) Other receivables a82.77 1,400.35
{¢} Loans 5 8,306 51 19,096.96
e} Investment ] 9,419.71 4,014.71
{f}  Other financlal asseis 7 483.04 413.64
Total finantial assets 91,784.95 92,174.05
Nen-financial assats
{a} Deferred tax asset {net)
{o}  Proparty, plant and equipments 8 278.31 44375
{c) Right of usz assets 3 1.639.62 1,525.44
{d} Intangible assets g 43.41 55.08
{e}  Othar non financial assets 9 4,8%37.18 5,382.05
{f  Assets held for sale g 8541 131041
Total nan financial assets 6,284.00 7,586.73
TOTAL ASSETS 98,068.95 99,760.78
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Financial liabilities
{a] Payables
{1) Trade payablos
(i} totat outstanding dues of micro enterprises and o
; 10 195
smal enterprisgs
{ii} tatad outstanding dues of craditors ather than mecre 10 93 08 1,136.32
enterprises and smal enterprises
{1} Oghar payahies
{1} total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and 10
smalf enterprises =
(i} total outstanging dues of creditors ather than nucro 10 36.86 793,43
enterptises and simall antarprises
i) Lease liabidity 13 1,128.38 1,474 54
{e} Other financial habiitizs 13 295.91 601.52
Total financial liabilities 1,583.23 3,947.76
Mon-financial liabitities
fal Current tax liabilities {net) 12 1,985.10 1,597 48
{tl  Provision for expenses 121 506.72 1,530.95
{c}  Other non financiat fiabilities 12 1,232 64 748.23
Total non financial fiabilities 3,704.46 4,276.56
Equity
{al Equity share capital 13 1,16,880.21 1,16,880.21
Other equity 14 (24,098.95) {25,343.75}
Total equity - 92,781.26 53648
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 98,068.95 99,760, 78!
Significant Accounting Policies 1

The Notes to the Financial Statements form an ‘ntegral pan of the Standaione Financial Siaternents,
This 15 the Standalone Balanca Sheet referrad to in our repar: of even date.

For 8atlibai & Purohit For ahd on behalf of the Board of Directors
Charterag Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 101048W Ve
9, —
W
Janak Mahta . Christian Rosswag
Partner Director Managing Director &

—— Mambership No. 116376 Chief Financial Officer
"r”/; P ,
// Ol & £ BIN Mo - 09187391 Dt Mo - 09332572
74N \Ebf“n ~ \/\\ et

VINTa AN o il
e a2 \\a NN~
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[:"‘1’ !‘wdn b )0 _,H- Hiral Bhayani
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\'5:"» N 9 :é:" Septernbar 21, 2023 Membarship No. A38638
\‘(2‘[-“\ P \\(x\y Copl o Y3
Nl ACC O, September 21, 2023
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volkswagen sinante Private Limted
Statamant of Standalana Profit and 103 Tor the Year Saded Mareh 31 2023

‘Y=ar Eonded March| Year Ended March
Particuilars Mate 3n,W3 31,2022
iRs. In Lakhs) 183, In Lakhs)

" From Cont T
Revenua Fram Discontinues Jperations
e pan 15 482635 12,63% 53
Fuos and com nincame ia LTy 4, A
Othar agaraling wenms ¥? 868 250.58
Racaverias irer financia assets weiitun off 26.26 B34
Total Revenusa from Discontisued operations 2.999.32 16,918.84
I Otherirgere 18 17§ 538,51
. . i i e R
W ;I':'m income from Discontinued aperations {1 + 5.165.131 17,358.35
v from continuing ans
i & ap.
(G i 11985 PRSLE A
fiy Tess 2nd commusiing experse ] I35 3,088 86
4t Impanirent on fine - alinstuments 2 (21,844 21} 133,557 05|
irs Employne nanefits expences 74 198502
o Depredaucn and amoslizalon 2xpeasss 3 533.13
fui} Ot exsenses ” 3,571.68

Tolal Exg from DI inued Operati 116,524.77]

Profit / (Loss) after tax for Cantinuing uperations
v

Vil 21gfit before exceational iters are wax ham 21689.50 14,697 81
Sscoetivaied oxeratiors [l - N

Sxceptana. ilems fiotn Dl ovtoued Dperalions

% L €3 {20,425.64) 48,520 13}
ilaxs?

X Profufiloes; Defore 1ad Tram Ris.ontnued apuiation 1.284.28] {33,832.34

2 nbinued age atigas B733.8%

(N eleriad dax jematti / charga EREERSS

Profit/ Lassl after tax froms Discantinued

63.2 42,365
Operations (X-XI) 1,263.25 142,365.95]

sl Profit f{toss) for the pericd (Vi + i) 1,264.26 142,355.95)
Other Comprehensive intome from Discontinued
Operatigns

Al 5 dat will
prafitor fos

it} tncome: tax elating
not be raciassiog 1o pre
S i
B (i} Jtem: thal w oe reclassiiec to
profit 2t oss

(i) tnceme Lax relatiag Lo Wams vhat will
be reglassifiedt 1o profit or ingg E E
sublotal {B} - 4
Olher Comprehensive incame (A + 8) {3846} 343
Total Comiprahensive lncome far the year from
Digcomt i < {XEIXIV) (T

Profit [Lass) and other Comprehensive incame far
the veard

e cecdaaiod 0

s
=
B
&
ww
&

e shat will

1,234,830 {42,362.52)

nings pay ey share of R 30 each lron
Contirving ogeranons

Aasic and Dlutad

agary A Pty Shares o Re 1l aach
Category B Equty Shares ¢f 810 cach

Wy

Ea:tungs perequity shars of Rs 10 each (om
Ciscoatinasd opziations

B and Delnted

Categary ‘A" Bguity Shares w1 85.12 cach 011 1553
Cateqory & Lauity Shares of B ¢ {352y

it

nificant Aczce ating Pols s 1
@ Notas G the Stardalew Finasoial Setermar s forr ae iriegra part of the Standalos Frog

il Mate tents

Taisis the Standaiore statement of Profir sen Loy e, v ous report af aven dits.

Far Batlibo: & Purohit

e
Jansk Mehta - falf Teihmann Cheistian Rosswag
Fa v maraging Deecior ko
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vakuwazen FHaznge Privats ivad
Statesnent of Standalone Cash Flow for the year onded fearch 31, 2022

farculars

Year Ercded March 33,
2023
Rz, i Lakhs)

¥ear Ended March
31, 2022
(B in Laklss)

& Cash flow from aperating activities from Cortinuing Operations

B Cash flow from operating activities from Discoofinued Dperatiuns
ez (Losst / Pratit bafara taxatian

adjustments for

Depraciaon [ smortsslon

Inter
Prafit/lose an Sz of Fived dssets [aet]
Expocted c-edit 1055 on firanza asigts
Bac Dabts Wntten Cff

2 on Fixed Depost

tes and Rarrowings ather thas demt secwnties
debt secunties

pterest on Gebt
interast pz'd fin Debt fecurities srd Jorrow:ings other it
niereston Laase iabihty

woax a1 $ale of Tl ncial Assats

Operating Profit before warking capital changas

Changas in warking capital :

Decizase in Payadlas

(Decraaseiin Jther finanaal iabities
Becrensz in Other non financal fabdites
increase |dacigasel n Recaivably
{increase) # decrease in Uthas hoh fines
Encrgase) in Ithar Frnancial assels
{acreaselfDecrease n 3ank dzizares oihe theacask and 2ash aguwvaients

Laase
Other Adjustment
increate;Decrasie in Lonny
Cash used in Operations
Faxes paid

Met cash inflow from operating activities from Discontinued Operations
€ Cash flow From Investing Activities from Caatinuing Oparations

0.Cash fiow from tavesting Ativities from Discontinued Qperations
Pusenase of tan;

progress

a/irtangbie aviens exchiding Capdai o cein.

=ate of Lraphisfintanginle astets
o
fiet cash inflow from fnwasting activities from Discontinued Operations

fatsrest rageved on fixeg

sEout

£.Cash flow from Financing Adiivities fram Conlinuing Operations

F.Cash flow fram Financing Activities from Discontinuet Sperations
intarest or Debt Sacurities and Borrowings oiner than $202 sacufitien
Repaymant / Rademplon of Nan roaveri:ble debetures

Repsyment of Term laans

Repayinent of Lease Liabiizy

Mer eath ouliow from financing activities from Discontinued Operations

tiet Increasef{Dacraassa) in Cosh and cash squivalents from Cootinuing
Dperatians {A}+{C)+(E]

Net increase in Cash and cash equivalents from Discontirued Qperations (8)«[Dj+{F}
Cash and cash aquivaleats, beginning of the yeor

| Cosh and cash equivalents, end of the year

128420

13383284

53312 g8tan
{2,387 20 {748.34)
1478 =031
114,422.58)
43593
. 3358 46
34.30 11273
20,425.54 HE530.15)
2,799.54) {52.818.21)
{1,625.34)] {2,349.5¢]
(3e5.65} {96 24)
£29.72) 346
148587 {1.44876)
1LUpLis (236 32)
169.41) {20.36)
TA8254 14,4329}
(346.2€] 47
LIBLSE
12,203.03 29338278
16,603 10 5.30,319.37
(568.55;
16,033.45 31,30,319.27
i127.14))
L1162
24831
733.79
2,398 <6}
- 118,733 338)
- §5 0.6
(330.02)
(4182081
19,380.31 49,232.35
53,371.78 4,739.44
13,352.10 53,971.79

Notes to the statement of cash Jow :
1} Cash and 2ash equive snis comprise ol
Cash on nand

Cepovits r-ginal matury of uple 3 moatu

TOoTAL

For Batiibei & Purohit
Chartarag Arroustants

1CA! Firre Regisiration No  191040%W

Jansk Mehta falf Teichinann
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-
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7167441
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vilkgwagen Finance Private Limited
Statement of Changes in Eaquity for the vear endad Mardh 31, 2023

£quity Share Capital
For the yeac ended March 31, 2023

{Rs. In Lakhs}

hanges in Eouity Share Casts
dus 19 prdor perod vrars
115240 21 2

Balance at the begnning of the curreer
report.ng cered

Rasiated bs ance 2t
Changss m =ity 30
capital 3 g e

Jolsrent year

: ‘pericd

il!aian:: 3t ineerg of
itne currert reporting

1153302

For the yaar ended March 31, 2022

Ratarca 9t the peginning of 1he orevious sty Snare Capral

i begicmag of

Restavad salance at -

previous regorting ica:ml cuimg the

4iges N Tquity share

the pagfof
aus ranorting

daianca
e o

reparting peeog erivd mrrats gericid previeus yea- aeriad

Other equity

For the year snded March 31, 2023 i {Rs. In L3khs)
Particuiars Aeserves and Surplus |

Spachal Amsarves under sectinn
it of the Reserve Bank of 1dis
Ay, 1934

C allzn.:a at the begirring of the
Jsurrent reponting nenied

Changes in accounting policy or wrio:
Feriod grors

a5t e¢ Dulance 3t v begian ing of
the curren! reporting parisd

Total Comprahers.va inzome for the
Turrent year

Dmidend:

FOther wems of Uther

Ratamed T

Tatal

Transtar toffrom ratared carnirgs

f252.35)

12534378}

{1 28}y

{32 798 35!

For the year end=d March 31, 2022

Particulars o : Raserves and Surplus e
Ipecial Resarves unzer sectior 45§ Retained Earnings eker ey of Other
i af the Reserva Baok o7 India Lomprahens ive
Act, 1934, ircoma ~Acturial Totel
Gainfloss for defined
cenehipians
Balarce 4l ths Seginming of the pravious LY 1701807
porting yetice §5.242.63 168.791.37 i
Charges n acceuntng pokicy 27 griar 3 & 1
pariod srrors :
Restated ba'ance at the beginn ing of the : BAL2 63 i0,761.37 I 477 1701377
prasizn repty Cng ekt
Total Coraprekensive (acome for the 3a3 {€1,382.52)
previssyerr 4 - 2,365.95))
Civ-dancy s TR a - " =
Transfer “raom retained sarnings
|Any other shange (to de specified; -

Balance at the 0nd of the previous
regorting pariad

12534375

o Batlibol & Purchi
Chertered Accauniants
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 (Continued)

1.1.CORPORATE INFORMATION

Volkswagen Finance Private Limited (VWFPL) has been incorporated on January 16, 2009. The
Company received NBFC license fram the Reserve Bank of India (RBI} on March 17, 2011 and
commenced NBFC business from March 24, 2011. VWFPL is providing retail car financing, dealer
car financing, term loans, used cars financing, operating lease and insurance solutions to the
customers for purchase of VW Group brand vehicles i.e. Volkswagen, Skoda, Audi, Porsche,
Lamborghini, MAN and Scania. The Company has discontinued its financing business and has also
applied to the Reserve Bank for surrender of NBFC licence.

1.2.BASIS OF PREPARATION

A. Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards {Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 as amended by the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2016. The Company has
adopted Ind AS from April 01, 2018 with effective transition date of April 01, 2017 and accordingly,
these financial statements together with the comparative reporting period have been prepared in
accordance with the recognition and measurement principles as laid down in Ind AS, prescribed
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 {'the Act') read with relevant rules issued there
under and other relevant provision of the act.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for:
» Certain financial assets and liabilities - measured at fair value

® Assets held for sale- Measured at fair value less cost to sell.

» Defined benefit ptans (Employee benefit provisions) — measured at fair value.

B. The financial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The
accounting policies are applied consistently to the financial years presented in the financial
statements. These financial statements were authorized for issue by the Company’s Board of
Directors on September 21, 2023.

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Ind AS requires use of estimates and
assumptions for some items, which might have an effect on their recognition and measurement
in the Balance sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss. The actual amounts realized may differ
from these estimates. The estimates and the underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis.

Judgement, estimates and assumptions are required in particular for:
I. Determination of estimated useful lives of property, plant, equipment
Useful lives of property, plant and equipment are based on the nature of the asset, the
estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the asset, past history of
replacement, anticipated technological changes, manufacturers’ warranties and
maintenance support.

Il. Recognition and Measurement of defined benefit obligations
The obligation arising from defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial
valuation. Key actuarial assumptions which form the basis of above valuation includes
discount rate, trends in salary escalation, demographics and life expectancy. The discount
rate is determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on
government bonds. The period to maturity of the underlying bonds correspond to the
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 (Continued)

VI

Vil.

VL.

probable maturity of the post-employment benefit obligations. Further details are disclosed
in note 25.

Recognition of deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences of
temporary differences between the carrying values of assets and liabilities and their
respective tax hases, depreciation carry-forwards and tax credits. Deferred tax assets are
recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, depreciation carry-forwards and unused
tax credits could be utilized.

. Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies

The recogniticn and measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of the
probability of an outflow of resources, and on past experience and circumstances known at
the reporting date. The actual cutflow of resources at a future date may therefore, vary from
the amount included in other provisions.

Discounting of long-term financial assets/liabilities

All financial assets/liabilities are required to be measured at fair value on initial recognition.
In case of financial assets/liabilities which are required to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost, interest is accrued using the effective interest method.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal {or most advantageous)
market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price)
regardless of whether that price is directly observahble or estimated using another valuation
technique. When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the
balance sheet cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety of
valuation technigues that include the use of valuation models. The inputs to these models
are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, estimation
is required in establishing fair values. Judgements and estimates include considerations of
liquidity and model inputs related to items such as credit risk (both own and counterparty),
funding value adjustments, correlation and volatility. For further details about determination
of fair value please see Note 27.

Business model assessment
Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the solely
payment of principal and interest (SPPI}) and the business model test. The Company
determines the business model at a level that reflects how groups of financial assets are
managed together to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes
judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is
evaluated and their performance measured, the risks that affect the performance of the
assets and how these are managed and how the managers of the assets are compensated.
The Company monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost or fair value through _
other comprehensive income that are derecognised prior to their maturity to understand thg” <
reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of t
business for which the asset was held.

Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method
The Company’s EIR methodology, recognises interest income / expense using a rate of return
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 (Continued)

that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the contractual life of
loans given/ taken and recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates at various
stages and other characteristics of the product life cycie.

. Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses on its financial assets
measured at amortized cost. At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether the
above financial assets are credit- impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit- impaired’ when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset have occurred. The Company’s ECL calculations are outputs of statistical
models with a number of underlying assumptions regarding the choice of variable inputs and
their interdependencies such as macroeconomic scenarios and collateral values.

C. Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees {INR) and all values are rounded to the
nearest lakhs with two decimals, except when otherwise indicated.

1.3.SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Interest income on financial assets is recognized on an accrual basis using effective
interest method. EIR is calculated by considering all costs and incomes attributable to
acquisition of a financial asset or assumption of a financial liability and it represents a rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments/receipts through the expected life
of the financial asset/financial liability to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset or
to the amortised cost of a financial liability.

Interest revenue is continued to be recognized at the original effective interest rate
applied on the gross carrying amount of assets falling under stages 1 and 2 as against on
amortised cost net of impairment allowance for the assets falling under impairment
stage 3.

Fees and commission income and expense that are integral to the effective interest rate
an a financial asset or financial liability are included in the effective interest rate. Fees and
commission that are not integral to effective interest rate are recognised on acerual basis
over the life of instrument except for penalty interest income and other service fee are
recognized when there is reasonable certainty of receiving the same.

All other fees, commissions and other income and expense are generally recognised on
an accrual basis by reference to completion of the specific transaction assessed based an
the actual service provided as a proportion of the total services to be provided.

The Company recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five step
madel as set out in Ind 115:

Step 1: Identify contract{s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement bet
two or more parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the fferia
for every contract that must be met.
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Step 2: Identify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a
promise in a contract with a customer to transfer a good or service to the customer.

Step 3: Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration
to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or
services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the perfermance obligations in the contract: For a
contract that has more than one performance obligation, the Company allocates the
transaction price to each performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of
consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfying each
performance obligation.

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation.
B. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Classification

The company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories;

¢ those to be subsequently measured at (either through other comprehensive income, or
through profit or loss), and

e those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or
other comprehensive income.

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction fees or costs that are directly
attributable and incremental to the origination/acquisition of the financial asset unless
otherwise specifically mentiocned in the accounting policies.

The Company recognises the financial assets at trade date on initial recognition.

Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of a business model in which an asset is
held such that it best reflects the way the business is managed and is consistent with
information provided to management. The information considered includes:

/ ——
- - . . WAY,
— the abjectives for the portfalio, in particular, management’s strategy of focusing on Q}\? 06‘4
earning contractual interest revenue, maintaining a particular interest rate profile, /< 3
(=l
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matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of the liabilities that are
funding those assets or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

— the frequency, volume and timing of sales in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and
its expectations about future sales activity. However, information about sales activity is
not considered in isolation, but as part of an overall assessment of how the Company’s
stated objective for managing the financial assets is achieved and how cash flows are
realised.

— the risks that affect the performance of the business model, the financial assets held
within that business model and how those risks are managed.

Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest
For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset
on initial recognition. ‘interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and
for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period
of time and for other basic lending risks and costs, as well as profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest,

the Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing

whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or

amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making the

assessment, the Company considers:

— reset terms

— contingent events that would change the amount and timing of cash flows;

— prepayment and extension terms; and

— features that modify consideration of the time value of money — e.g. periodical reset of
interest rates.

Financial assets at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost only if both of the following conditions are

met;

— it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows.

— the contractual terms of the financial asset represent contractual cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest (EIR} method. Amortised cost is calculated by considering any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR and
reported as part of interest income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses if any,
arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial asset at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income [FVOCI)

Financial asset with contractual cash flow characteristics that are solely payments of principal
and interest and held in a business model whose ohjective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets are classified to be measured at FVOCI. The
impairment losses, if any, on such instrument is recognized through Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Financial asset at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
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o

Any financial instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized
cost or as FVOCI, is classified to be measured at FVTPL.

Financial instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost except when designated
to be measured at FVTPL.

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The provision for credit risks, which is recognized in accordance with the expected credit loss
mode!l specified by Ind AS 109 and in accordance with uniform standards applied,
encompasses all financial assets measured at amortized cost. The calculation of the provision
for credit risks generally takes into account the exposure at default, the probability of default
and the loss given default.

Financial assets are subject to credit risks, which are taken into account by recognizing the
amount of the expected loss; such aliowances are recognized for both financial assets with
objective evidence of impairment and non-impaired financial assets.

The general approach is used for financial assets measured at amortized cost on initial
recognition. Financial assets are broken down into three stages in the general approach. Stage
1 consists of financial assets that are being recognized for the first time or that have not
demonstrated any significant increase in probability of default since initial recognition. In this
stage, the model requires the calculation of an expected credit loss for the next twelve
manths. Stage 2 consists of financial assets for which there is a significant increase in credit
risk. Financial assets demonstrating objective indications of impairment are allocated to Stage
3. In Stages 2 and 3, an expected credit loss is calculated for the entire remaining maturity of
the asset,

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it
is more than 30 days past due. For the wholesale porifolio, the credit risk is assumed to have
been increased based on change in the risk class according to the master scale as of reporting
date is compared with the risk class according to master scale as of initial recognition

The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when:

- the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without
recourse by the Company to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or

- the financial asset is 90 days or more past due

- For wholesale portfolio, it also depends on the risk class as per the master scale of the
Company

In the case of financial assets already impaired on initial recognition and classified as purchase
originated and impaired assets (“POCI”) for the purposes of the disclosures, the provision for
credit risks is recognized in subsequent measurement on the basis of the cumulative changes
in the expected credit loss for the entire life of the asset cancerned. Any financial instrument
already classified as impaired on initial recognition remains in this stage untj
derecognized.
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Both historical information, such as average historical default probabilities for each portfolio,
and forward- looking information is used to determine the measurement parameters for
caleulating the provision for credit risks.

Impairment arises in a number of situations, such as delayed payment over a certain period,
the initiation of enforcement measures, the threat of insolvency or aver indebtedness,
application for or the initiation of insolvency proceedings, or the failure of restructuring
measures.

Reviews are regularly carried out to ensure that the allowances are approgpriate. Uncollectible
loans or receivables that are already subject to a workout process and for which all collateral
has been recovered and all further options for recovering the loan or receivable have been
exhausted are written off directly. Any valuation allowances previously recognized are
utilized. Income subsequently collected in connection with loans or receivables already
written off is recognized in profit or loss.

Loans and receivables are reported in the balance sheet at the net carrying amount. The
provision for credit risks relating to off-balance sheet irrevocable credit commitments is
recegnized with- in other liabilities.

D. WRITE-GFFS

Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety when there is no realistic
prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the
borrower does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows
to repay the amounts. If the amount to be written off is greater than the accumulated loss
allowance, the difference is first treated as an addition to the allowance that is then appiied
against the gross carrying amount. Any subsequent recoveries are credited to impairment on
financial instruments in Statement of Profit and Loss. However, financial assets that are
written off may be subject to enforcement activities to comply with the Company’s
procedures for recovery of amounts due.

E. DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar

financial assets} is primarily derecognised when:

- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

- The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed
an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party
under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or {b) the Company has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has

entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained

the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially

all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company

continues to recognize the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing

involvement. In that case, the Company also recognizes an associated liability. The tra

asset and the associated liahility are measured on a basis that reflects the

obligations that the Company has retained.
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Continuing involvernent that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount
of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset
(or the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset derecognised) and the sum of (i)
the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liahility assumed)
and {il) any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in OCl is recognised in statement
of profit or loss.

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged
or cancelled, or expire.

F. MODIFICATION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Financial assets

If the terms of a financial asset are modified, the Company evaluates whether the cash flows
of the modified asset are substantially different. If the cash flows are substantially different,
then the contractual rights to cash flows from the original financial asset are deemed to have
expired. In this case, the original financial asset is derecognised and a new financial asset is
recognised at fair value,

If the cash flows of the modified asset carried at amortised cost are not substantially different,
then the modification does not result in derecognition of the financial asset. In this case, the
Company recalculates the gross carrying amount of the financial asset as the present value of
the renegotiated or modified contractual cash flows that are discounted at the financial
asset's original effective interest rate and recognises the amount arising from adjusting the
gross carrying amount as a modification gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Any
costs or fees incurred adjust the carrying amount of the modified financial asset and are
amartised over the remaining term of the modified financial asset. If such a2 modification is
carried out because of financial difficulties of the borrower, then the gain or loss is presented
together with impairment losses, in other cases, it is presented as interest income.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows
of the modified liability are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based
on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is
recognised in statement of profit or loss.

G. MEASUREMENT OF FAIR VALUES

The Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values for
financial instruments.
When measuring the fair value of a financial asset or a financial liability, the Company uses
observable market data as far as possible. Fair values are categorized into different levelsin a
fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows.
Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are cbservable for the
or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly {i.e. derived from prices),
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Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
{unohservable inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of
the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the
same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire
measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the
reporting period during which the change has occurred.

H. OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
Balance Sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY

A subsidiary is an entity in which the Company has power to control the financial and
operating policies so as to obtain benefits from its activities. Investment in subsidiary is
carried at cost in separate financial statements.

J. FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of
such transactions. Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities as at the balance sheet
date are translated at the rates of exchange prevailing on the balance sheet date. Gains and
losses arising on account of differences in foreign exchange rates on settlement/translation
of foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are recognized in the statement of profit
and loss.

K. TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed in
the ordinary course of business. Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant financing camponents,
when they are recognised at fair value. The Carnpany holds the trade receivables with the
objective to collect the contractual cash flows and therefore, measures them subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate methed, less allowance.

L. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to
the end of financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid
within 30 days of recognition. Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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M. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are stated at acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment, if any. Costs directly attributable to acquisition are capitalized until the
property, plant and equipment are ready for use, as intended by management. Gain or losses
arising from the retirement or disposal of property, plant and equipment are determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of property, plant
and equipment and recognized as income or expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis on a Straight Line Method over the estimated
useful life of property, plant and equipment at rates which are equal to or higher than the
rates prescribed under Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013 in order to reflect the actual
usage of property, plant and equipment. The estimates of useful lives of property, plant and
equipment, based on a technical evaluation, are reviewed periodically, including at each
financial year end. Estimated useful lives over which assets are depreciated are as follows:

Asset Type Useful life in years
Building 30

Leasehold Improvements Over the lease period
Office Equipment 5

Computers - Servers and Networks 6

Computers - Laptops and Desktops 3

Furniture and Fixtures 10

Vehicles 8

Vehicles given on operating fease Over the lease period

Used property, plant and equipment purchased are depreciated over the residual useful life
from the date of original purchase. For property, plant and equipment purchased and sald
during the year, depreciation is provided on pro rata basis by the Company.

Property, plant and equipment costing less than Rs.5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of
purchase.

N. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment, if any.
Intangible assets are amortized over their estimated useful lives on a straight line basis, from
the date they are available for use. Estimated useful life over which intangible assets are
amortised are as follows:

Asset Type Useful life in years
Software 4

O. INTANGIBLE ASSETS UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Development costs that are directly attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and
unique software products controlled by the Company are recognised as intangible assets
when the following criteria are met:
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* management intends to complete the software and use or sell it

® there is an ability to use or seli the software

* it can be demonstrated how the software will generate probable future econcmic
benefits

» adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and
to use or sell the software are available, and

¢ the expenditure atiributable to the software during its development can be reliably
measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of the intangible assets under
development include employee costs and an appropriate portion of relevant
overheads. Capitalised development costs are recorded as intangible assets and amortised
from the point at which the asset is available for use.

P. BORROWING COST

Borrowing costs other than those directly attributable to qualifying Property, Plant and
Equipment are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Q. INCOME TAX

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. it is recognised in statement of profit
or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or in QCI.

Current tax

Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid in respect of taxable income for
the year in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961, Current tax comprises the expected tax
payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the
tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. It is measured using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation
purposes.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and based on management’s
judgement, are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit
will be realised; such reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits
improves.

Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
they can be used.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary
differences when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the

manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carr
amount of its assets and liabilities. It is measured using tax rates enacted or subs i
enacted at the reporting date.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if;

a) the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities; and

b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority.

R. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

I. Provident fund is a defined contribution scheme and the contributions as required by the
statute to Government Provident Fund are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss
when due.

Il. Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is wholly unfunded. The Company
accounts for liability for future gratuity benefits based on actuarial valuation. The net
present value of the Company’s obligation towards the same is actuarially determined
based on the projected unit credit method as at the Balance Sheet date.

lll. Remeasurement of all defined benefit plans, which comprise actuarial gains and losses are
recognised immediately in other comprehensive income in the year they are incurred.
Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent period.
Remeasurement gains or losses on long term compensated absences that are classified as
other long term benefits are recognised in profit or loss. Net interest expense {income) on
the net defined liability (assets) is computed by applying the discount rate, used to measure
the net defined liability {asset), to the net defined liability (asset) at the start of the financial
year after taking into account any changes as a result of contribution and benefit payments
during the year. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans
are recognised in statement of profit or loss.

IV. The Company accrues the liability for compensated absences based on the actuarial
valuation as at the balance sheet date conducted by an independent actuary which
includes assumptions about demographics, early retirement, salary increases, interest
rates and leave utilisation. The net present value of the Company’s obligation is
determined based on the projected unit credit method as at the Balance Sheet date.

S. SEGMENTAL REPORTING

The Company’s operating segments are established on the basis of those components of the
Company that are evaluated regularly by the Managing Director (the ‘Chief Operating Decision
Maker” as defined in Ind AS 108 - ‘Operating Segments’), in deciding how to allocate resources
and in assessing performance. These have been identified taking into account nature of
products and services, the differing risks and returns and the internal business reporting
systerns.

Company has two principal operating and reperting segments viz
- Retail finance

- Dealerfinance

Revenue and Expenses have been identified to a segment on the basis of relationship t

whole and are not allocable to a segment on reasonable basis have been disclo
“Unallocable”.
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Segment Assets and Segment Liabilities represent Assets and Liabilities in respective
segments, Investments, tax related assets and other assets and liabilities that cannot be
allocated to a segment on reascnable basis have been disclosed as “Unallocable”.

T. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting preference dividends and attributable
taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Partly
paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they were
entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting
period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is
adjusted for events of bonus issue; bonus element in a rights issue to existing shareholders;
share split; and reverse share split (consolidation of shares).

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

U. PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognised when
there is present obligation as a result of past events and it is probahle that there will be an
outflow of resources. Contingent liabilities are not recognised but disclosed in the notes.
Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in financial statements.

V. OPERATING LEASES

The company has applied IND AS 116 using the modified retrospective approach.

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That
is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration.

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except
for short-term [eases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities
to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying
assets. The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for
short-term [eases that have a lease term of 12 months or less.

i. Right to use of Asset

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date {i.e., the date of
adoption of Ind AS 116). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.
The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets. 2
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il Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at
the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments {including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected
to be paid under residual value guarantees,

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing
rate at the Ind AS 116 adoption date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to
reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. in addition, the
carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the
lease term, a change in the lease payments {e.g., changes to future payments resulting from
a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

W.CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Cash flows are reporied using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before
extraordinary items and tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and
any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from
operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated based on the
available information.

X. IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

The carrying values of assets at each balance sheet date are reviewed for impairment if any
indication of impairment exists. If the carrying amount of the assets exceed the estimated
recoverable amount, an impairment is recognised for such excess amount.

The recoverable amount is the greater of the fair value less costs of disposal and their value
in use. Value in use is arrived at by discounting the future cash flows to their present value
based on an appropriate discount factor.,

When there is indication that an impairment loss recognised for an asset (other than a
revalued asset) in earlier accounting periods which no longer exists or may have decreased,
such reversal of impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, to the
extent the amount was previously charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss. In case of
revalued assets, such reversal is not recognized.

Y. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash on hand and balances with banks. It also
comprises of short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of
changes in value.

Z. CONTRIBUTED EQUITY
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Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

AA. NON-CURENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

AB.

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use and a sale is
considered highly probable. They are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell, except for assets such as deferred tax assets, assets arising from
employee benefits, financial assets and contractual rights under insurance contracts, which
are specifically exempt from this requirement.

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent write-down of the asset to fair
value less costs ta sell. Againis recognised for any subsequent increases in fair value less costs
to sell of an asset, but not in excess of any cumulative impairment loss previously recognised.
A gain or loss not previously recognised by the date of the sale of the non-current asset is
recognised at the date of de-recognition.

Non-current assets that are not depreciated or amortised while they are classified as held for
sale. Interest and other expenses attributable to the liabilities of a disposal group classified as
held for sale continue to be recognised.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale and the assets of a disposal group classified as
held for sale are presented separately from the other assets in the balance sheet

Transfer to special reserve

As per section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of india Act, 1934 (the RBI Act), the company is
transferring an amount not less than 20 per cent of its net profit to a reserve fund before
declaring any dividend. Appropriation from this reserve fund is permitted only for the purpose
specified by RBI.

AC. Goods and service tax

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the goods and services tax paid, except:

{1} when the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the
taxation authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of
acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable;

(i} when receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included.

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as
part of receivables or payabies in the balance sheet.
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New Standards issued or amendments to the existing standard but not yet effective:

On March 31, 2023, Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA’) issued the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 (‘the Rules’}, applicable for annyal reporting periods beginning
on or after April 01, 2023, which are as below:

I. Indasi- Presentation of Financial Statements:

to be material. The amendments also clarify that —a, accounting policy information may be material
because of jts nature, even if the related amounts are immaterial;

b. accounting policy information is material if users of an entity’s financial statements would need it
to understand other material information in the financial statements; and

c. if an entity discloses immaterial accounting policy information, such information shall not obscure
material accounting policy information.

These amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the financial statements of the
Company and the management will evaluate the disclosures requirements for the subsequent
annual financial reporting.

2. IndAS8-— Accounting policies, Changes in Accounting estimates and Error-

The definition of ‘change in accounting estimates’ is replaced with a definition of ‘accounting
estimates’, As per the new definition accounting estimates are “monetary amounts in financial
statements that are subject to Mmeasurement uncertainty”. The amendments have also added
explanation for treatment and recognition of changes in accounting estimates,

These amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the financial statements of the
Company.

3. Ind AS12 - Iincome taxes:

Transactions which give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences (at time of the
transaction) have been added to exceptions to the initjal recognition exemption provided in the ind
AS 12. The amendments alse apply to taxable and deductibie temporary differences associated with
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, and decommissioning obligations and corresponding
amounts recognised as assets at the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented and
requires recognition of the cumulative effect of initially appiying the amendments as an adjustment
to the opening balance of retained earnings {or other component of equity, as appropriate) at that
date.

The Company is in the process of evaluating the impact of these amendrments, however, these

amendments are not expected to have a material fmpact on the financial statements of the

Company as the Company already recognised the deferred taxes associated with right-of-use assets .
and lease liabilities that are already aligned with the proposed amendments, £ FINAY,
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in the nature of either certain corrections of errors or consequential cross reference in respect of the
above mentioned amendments and do not have impact on accounting principles.
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2} Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars

March 31, 2023
{Rs. In Lakhs)

March 31, 2022
{Rs. In Lakhs)

Cash ¢n Hand
Bank Balance in
Current Account
Deposits with original maturity of upto 3 months

Total

677.69 671.79
72,674.41 53,300
73,352.10 53,971.79

There are no repatriation restrictions with regards to cash and cash equivalents as at the end of reporting period and prior period,

3} Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(Rs. In Lakhs) {Rs. In Lakhs)
Bank deposits {with maturity upto 12 months from the reporting date) 7.31 7,500.00
Deposits for issuing Bank Guarantee in favour of VAT authorities 141 141
Total 8.72 7,501.41
4) Receivables
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(Rs. In Lakhs) {Rs. In Lakhs)
Trade Receivables
fUnsecured, considered good 126.10 764.19
Other receivables
Unsecured, considered good 482.77 1,400.35
Total 608.87 2,164.54
: March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Particulars

{Rs. In Lakhs}

{Rs. In Lakhs}

Ageing of trade receivabies

i} Undisputed trade receivables — considered good
Less than & months

6 Months to 1 year

1 year to 2 years

2 year to 3 years

More than 3 years

126.10

Total




Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 (continued)

5} Loans
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
{Rs. In Lakhs) {Rs. In Lakhs)

{A)

Classification

Amortised cost:

{ijvehicle Finance 28,126.32
(i) Term Loans to related party 8,696.09 13,353.22
Fair Value:

- through profit & Loss - -

- designated at fair value through OCI - -
Total Gross (A) 8,696.09 41,519.54
fLess:

Less: Impairment allowance {389.58) (22,422.58)
Total Net {A) 8,306.51 19,096.96
{B)

{i) Secured by tangible assets 10,786.00
{ii} Unsecured 8,696.09 30,733.54
Total Gross {B) 8,696.09 41,519.54
Less: Impairment allowance (389.58) {22,422.58)
Total Net (B) 8,306.51 19,096.97
(8]

{1} Loans in India

{i} Public Sector - -
{ii) Others 8,696.09| 41,519.54
Total Gross (C) {I) 8,696.09 41,519.54
Less: Impairment allowance (389.58) (22,422.58)
Total Net (C) (1) 8,306.51 19,096.97
(1) Loans outside India = B
Less: Impairment allowance - F
Total Net (C) {II)

Total (€} (1) and {I1) 8,306.51 19,096.97




Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 (continued)

6) Investment

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
{Rs. In Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs}

At Cost
Investment in Subsidiary*
Fully paid equity shares (unquoted) 8,514.71 8,514.71
1,195,466 equity shares of Rs. 10 each {March 2022: 1,195,466 equity shares
of Rs. 10 each)
Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares {unquoted) 505.00L 505.00
99,625 compulsory convertible preference shares of Rs. 10 each (March
2022: 99,625 compulsory convertible preference shares of Rs. 10 each)

Total 9,019.71 9,019.71
In India 9,019.71 9,019.71
Outside India - =

Total 9,019.71 9,019.71
*As per IND-AS 27 the option to record investment in subsidary at cost has
been taken.
7} Other Financial Assets

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
{Rs. In Lakhs) {Rs. In Lakhs)

Security Deposits 489.04 419.58
Advances recoverable in ¢cash or in kind or for value to be received - 0.06

Total 489.04 419.64
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 (continued)

9 (a) Other non financial assets

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(Rs. In Lakhs) {Rs. In Lakhs)
Advance Tax,TDS & TCS (Net of provision) 2,236.51 1,700.23
Service Tax Receivable 2,553.47 2,534.09
Other Current Assets 47.20] 1,157.73
(Other current assets includes advances to vendors and
prepaid expenses}
Total 4,837.18 5,392.06
9(b} Assets held for sale
particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
{Rs. In Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs)
Assets Held for Sale 85.41 130.41
{Assets held for sale includes the properties acquired in
settlement of loans. The asset is being actively marketed and is
expected to be sold in a due course}
Total 85.41 130.41




Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 {continued)

10} Payables

Particulars

March 31, 2023
{Rs. In Lakhs)

March 31, 2022
{Rs. In Lakhs)

{1) Trade payables
{i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small

enterprises 5 11.85
{ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises
-Payable for Vehicle Finance - 448.02
-Other Trade Payables 72.08 688.30
Total (i} 72.08 1,148.27
{1} Other payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises = =
(ii} total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises 86.86 723.43
Total {ii) 86.36 723.43
Total 158.94 1,871.70
Refer to note 34 for details for micro enterprises, small and medium enterprises
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Particulars

{Rs. In Lakhs)

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Ageing of Trade Payables
i) Undisputed trade payables — considered good
less than 1 year
1year to 2 years
2 year to 3 years
More than 3 years
Total

72.08

1,148.27

72.08

1,148.27




Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 {continued)

11) Other financial liabilities and [ease liabilities

Particulars

March 31, 2023
{Rs. in Lakhs)

March 31, 2022
{Rs. In Lakhs)

Dues to Employees 295.91 601.52
Lease Liabilities 1,128.38 1,474.54
Total 1,424.29 2,076.06
12) Other non financial liabilities
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Particulars

(Rs. In Lakhs}

{Rs. In Lakhs}

Employee Benefits
Gratuity
Leave Encashment
Other Liabilities {including statutory dues)
Other Provisions
Subtotal

Provisicn for Expenses
Provision for Tax {Net of Advance Tax and Tax Deducted at
Source)
{Refer Note 37)
Total

105.71 108.85
55.93 96.48
132,51 542.80
938.49 3
1,232.64 748.13
506.72 1,530.95
1,965.10 1,957.48
3,704.46 4,276.56




Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 {continued}

(13) Equity Share Capital

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
{Rs. In Lakhs) {Rs. In Lakhs}
Authorised:
146,610,000 (Previous Year:
146,610,000) Category 'A’ Equity Shares 14,661.00 14,661.00
of Rs.10 each
1,482,390,000 (Previous Year:
1,482,390,000} Category 'B' Equity 1,48,239.00 1,48,235.00
Shares of Rs.10 each
1,62,900.00 1,62,900.00

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up
105,192,207 {Previous Year:
105,192,207} Category 'A' Equity Shares
of Rs.10 each, fully paid up 10,519.22 10,519.22
1,063,609,937 {Previous Year:
1,063,609,937) Category 'B' Equity
Shares of Rs.10 each, fully paid up 1,06,360.99 1,06,360.99

Total 1,16,880.21 1,16,880.21
13 {a) Reconciliation of number of shares

particul March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Aol No of shares Amount No of shares Amount

Balance at the beginning
Category 'A' Equity Shares 10,51,92,207 10,519.22 10,51,92,207 10,519.22
Category 'B' Equity Shares 1,06,36,09,937 1,06,360.99 1,06,36,09,937 1,06,360.99
Add: Shares Issued during the year
Category 'A’ Equity Shares = - .
Category 'B' Equity Shares - - -
JBalance at the end of the year
Category 'A' Equity Shares 10,51,92,207 10,519.22 10,51,92,207 10,519.22
Category 'B' Equity Shares 1,06,36,09,937 1,06,360.99 1,06,36,09,937 1,06,360.99




Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 {continued)

13 (b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

The Company's authorised share capital is divided into Category 'A' equity shares and Category 'B' equity shares having par value of Rs. 10
each. Category 'A’ equity shares carry voting rights and dividend rights. Type “B” Equity Shares of Rs.10/- carrying no voting rights and no

dividend rights. Category 'B' equity shares are non participating, non-cumulative and shall not be entitled to any surplus on winding up or
other distributien such as bonus shares etc. together with rights, privileges and conditions attaching thereto as may be determined by the

Board of Directors from time to time.

13 {c) Shares held by holding company #

. March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Particulars
iN Lacs) {in Lacs
Equity Shares:
105,192,207 Category 'A' equity shares (Previous Year:
105,192,207} held by Volkswagen Finance Overseas B.V.,
Netherland, the subsidiary of Volkswagen Financial Services AG,
Germany. 10,519.22 10,519.22
1,063,609,937 Category 'B ' equity shares (Previous Year:
1,063,609,937) held by Volkswagen Financial Services A.G., 1,06,360.99 1,06,360.99
# Based on the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017, The Company
has considered Volkswagen Finance Qverseas B.V,Netherlands as
its Holding Company.
13(d) Details of shares held by each shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
March 31, 2023 ivtarch 31, 2022

Particulars
{No. of shares)

Percentage holding

{No. of shares)

Percentage holding

|Equity Shares:
105,192,207 Category 'A' equity shares

(Previous Year 2021: 105,192,207} held
by Volkswagen Finance Overseas B.V.,

Netherland, the subsidiary of 10j1ea20r
Volkswagen Financial Services AG,
Germanv.
1,063,609,937 Category 'B ' equity
shares {Previous Year 2021:
1,06,36,09,937

1,063,609,937) held by Valkswagen
Financial Services A.G., Germany.

100%

100%

10,51,92,207

1,06,36,09,937

100%

100%




Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 (continued)

13 {e] Details of shares held by promoters

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year % Change during the
5. No Promotername No. of Shares %of total shares year
Volkswagen Finance
Overseas B.V., 100%
il Netherland, 10,51,92,207 Nil
Volkswagen Financial 100%
2 Services A.G., Germany 1,06,36,09,937 Nil

13(f} For the period of five years immediately preceding 31.03.2023

Particulars No of shares

Aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid up
lpursuant to contract without payment being received in cash

Aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid up by
way of bonus shares

Aggregate number and class of shares bought back -

14) Other Equity
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
{Rs. In Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs)

Special Reserves under section 45-1C of

the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, 6,495.48 6,242.63
Retained earnings (30,593.17} {31,604.58)
Other Comprehensive Income {1.26) 18.20
TOTAL RESERVES {24,098.95) {25,343.75)

Nature and purpose of other equity
{i} Special Reserve under section 45-1C{1} of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934

According to section 45-IC(1) of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 every Non Banking
Financial Company is to create a reserve fund and transfer a sum not less than 20% of the
net profit every year before declaration of dividend. For preventing the defaults by the Non
Banking Financial Companies, this is an added measure of protection created by the statute.
it is created in order to give the entities and its creditors protection from the effect of losses.
{ii) Retained earnings

Retained earnings represents the surplus/accumulated earnings of the Company and are
available for distribution to shareholders.




Volkswagen Finance Private Limited
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 {continued}

14 (a) Other equity: Movement

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(Rs. In Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs)

Special Reserves under section 45-1C of
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
Balance at the beginning of the year 6,242.63 6,242.63
Transfered from Surplus in the
Statement of Profit and Loss 252.85 -
Balance at the end of the year 6,495.48 6,242.63
Surplus/(Deficit) in Statement of Profit
and Loss
Balance at the beginning of the year {31,604.58) 10,761.37
Profit / (Loss) for the year 1,264.26 {42,365.95)
Less: Transfer to Special Reserve under
section 45-1C of the Reserve Bank of (252.85)
India Act, 1934.

{30,593.17) (31,604.58)
Other Comprehensive Income
Balance at the beginning of the year 18.20 14.77
Changes during the year (19.46) 3.43
Balance at the end of the year {1.26) 18.20
TOTAL RESERVES (24,098.95) {25,343.75)




Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 (continued)

15) Interest income

Particulars

March 31, 2023
{Rs. In Lakhs)

March 31, 2022
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Classification;
On Financial Assets measured:
- at Amaortised Cost

(i) Interest on loans 1,588.63 11,891.32
(ii} Interest on depasits with banks 3,287.70 74831
(iii) Other interest income - -
- through profit and Loss L 2
- through OCI - N
Total 4,876.33 12,639.63
16) Fees and commission income
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
{Rs. In Lakhs) {Rs. In Lakhs)
|Processing Fees = 346.31
(Processing fees pertains to working capital loans of
upto one year)
Service Income 78.17 3,604.18
Total 78.17 3,950.49
17) Other operating income
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
{Rs. In Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs)
Inceme from customer services 18.68) 269.38
Total 18.68 269.38
18) Other Income
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(Rs. In Lakhs) {Rs. In Lakhs)
Foreign Exchange Gain {net) - 18.20
Excess provision no longer required = o
Miscellaneous Income* 155.77 592.17
Interest Income on Security Deposits 10.02 28.14
Total 165.79 638.51
* Includes Amount written back




Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 {continued)

18] Finance Cost

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
{Rs. In Lakhs) {Rs. In Lakhs)
Interest Expenses:
Classification:
On Financial Assets measured :
- at Amortised Cost
(i} Interest on debt securitias - 189.86
(i1} Interest on other than debt securities:
-Bank Overdraft - 167.91
-Commercial Papers - -
-Working Capital Damand Loan E 1,129.58)
-Term Loans - 1,870.71
-Others B -
(i} Other borrowing costs 25.54| 164.42
Interest on lease liability 94.30 112.73
Total 115.84 3,635.61
20} Fees and Commission Expenses
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(Rs. In Lakhs) {Rs. in Lakhs)
Commission ko Dealers - Insurance 29.48 3,088.86
Total 249.48 3,088.86
21) Impairment on financial instruments
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
{Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs)
Classification:
On Financial Assets measured at :
- at Amortised Cost
{i) Loans (22,033.00) [14,422.98)
{ii) Trade Receivables - -
- threugh profit and Loss - &
- through QCI = N
|Expected credit loss - Loans {22,033.00) (14,422.98)
Expected credit loss - Others - -
Bad Debts Written Off 188.79 465.93
Total (21,844, 21)[ (13,957.05)
|
22) Employee Benefits Expenses
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(Rs. In Lakhs} {Rs. in Lakhs)
Salaries, Bonus and Allowances 568.33 2,434.62
Contribution to Provident Fund and Other Funds 30.75 78.04
Expenses related to post-employment defined benefit plans - 20.92] 38.47,
Gratuity
Expenses related to post-employment defined benefit plans - (18.55) 79.60
Staff Welfare 64.47 58.59
Training and Recruitment Expenses O.GSL 2.37
Total 1,066.01 2,691.69




Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Motes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 (continued)

23} Other Expenses

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
{Rs. In Lakhs) {Rs. In Lakhs)
|8ent
-Building 23.31 0.13
-IT Equipment Lease Rent 4.80) 8.10
-Others = -
ILegal, Professional and Consultancy Fees B867.97 1,370.05
Auditor's Remuneration 28.13 24,00
Information Technology Support Charges 141.41 1,844.31
Repairs and Maintenance - Others 559.73] 451.57]
Traveling and Conveyance 55.28 2.99
Printing and Stationery 2.86 5.48
Communicaticn 17.76 38.62
Business Promotion & e
Facilities Management Charges 31.74 58.15
Electricity 34.14 32.92
Rates and Taxes 505.68 2,270.79
Foreign Exchange Loss (net} 74.35 -
Provision for Receivable expe 982.98 -
Directors 5itting Fees 27.00 31.00
Collection Agency Charges - 170.87
Corporate Secial Respansibility Spending 34.62 32.88
Miscellaneous 179.20 177.11
Total 3,571.00 6,518.95
Note 23A: Auditor's remuneration
particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
{Rs. In Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs)
Breakup of audit remuneration
- Statutory Audit 19.50 20.00
- Tax Audit 2.50 2.50
- Other Services 5.65 1.50
- Reimbursement of expenses 0.48 o
Total 28.13 24.00
Note 238 {i) : Exceptional ltems
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
{Rs. In Lakhs} {Rs. Inn Lakhs)
Loss on sale of foan portfolio 20,425.64 48,530.15
Total 20,425.64 48,530.15

Brand guaranty settlement amount received from Scania
Commercial Vehicles India Private Limited of Rs. 5,500 lakhs and
write back of unidentified credits of Rs. 592 lakhs has been
adjusted in the loss from sale af loan portfolio Alse refer Note 41,




Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 {continued)

24} Earnings per share

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit / {loss) for the year attributable to equity holders of the

Company by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EP$S amounts are calculated by dividing the profit / (loss) attributable to equity holders of the Company
by the weighted average number of Equity shares cutstanding during the year plus the weighted average
number of Equity shares that would ke issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares inte

Equity shares.

Particulars

March 31, 2023
{Rs. in Lakhs)

March 31, 2022
[Rs. in Lakhs)

Net {loss) / profit from continuing operation attributable to
equity holders

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

Weighted average number of shares at year end adjusted for the
effect of dilution

Basic earnings / {loss) per share (INR} {Face value of Rs. 10 per
share}

Diluted earnings f {loss) per share {INR) (Face value of Rs, 10 per
share}

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Particulars . .
{Rs. in Lakhs} {Rs. in Lakhs)
fit Di i fi i

NeE'(Ioss) / profit from Discontinued operatfon attributable to 1,264.26 (42,365.95)
equity holders

Category ‘A’ shares 113.78 {3,812.94)
Category 'B' shares 1,150.43 {38,553.02),
Category "A" shares

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

Opening equity share 10,51,82,207 10,51,82,207
Weighted average number of shares at year end 10,51,92,207 10,51,92,207
Weighted average number of shares at year end adjusted for the

effact of dilution 10,51,92,207 10,51,92,207
Basic earnings / (loss) per share (INR} (Face value of Rs. 10 per 011 (3.62)
share}
|Diuted earnings / (loss} per share {INR) [Face value of Rs. 10 per o.11 {3.62)
share}

Category ‘B shares

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

Cpening equity share 1,06,36,09,937 1,06,36,058,937
Weighted average number of shares at year end 1,06,36,09,937 1,06,36,09,937
Weighted average number of shares at year end adjusted for the

effect of dilution 1,06,36,09,937 1,06,26,09,937
Basic earnings / (loss} per share (INR} (Face value of Rs, 10 per 011 (2.62)
share)

Diluted earnings / (loss) per share (INR) [Face value of Rs. 10 per 041 (3.62)
share)

Face value per share {INR) 10 0

Far the purpose of calculating Earnings per share, dividend upto 6% of the total capital belongs to hoth
Category ‘A’ Equity shares and Category ‘B’ Equity shares propertionate to their weighted average share holding
and dividend over and above 6% belangs to Category ‘A’ Equity shares only (subject to approval from Board of

Directors).




Volkswagen Finance Private Limited
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 {continued)

25) Employee henefit obligations

The Comnpany has following post-emplayment plans In India.

A. Defined Contribution Plans:

In accordance with Indian regulations, employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the provident fund, 2 defined contribution plan,
in which, both the empioyee and the Company cantribute monthly at a determined rate. These contributions are made to a recognised provident fund.
The employee contributes 12% of his or her basic salary and the Company contributes an equal amount. The Company recognized Rs. 30.76 Lakhs
(Previous year. Rs.78.04 Lakhs}) for Provident Fund contribution in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

B. Defined Benefit Plan:

The Company offers the following employee benefit schemes to its employees:

In accordance with Payment of Gratuity Act, the Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering all employees. The plan
provides a [ump sum payment to vested employees at retirement or termination of employment based on the respective employee’s salary and the
vears of employment with the Company subject to maximum of Rs. 20 lakhs. {Previous Year Rs. 20 lakhs).

The gratuity benefit is provided thraugh unfunded plan and annual cantributions are charged to the statement of profit and loss. Under the scheme, the
settlement obligation remains with the Company. Company accounts for the fability for future gratuity benefits based on an actuarial valuation. The net
present value of the Company’s cbligation towards the same is actuarially determined based on the projected unit credit methaod as at the Balance Sheat
date.

Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following takle sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts recognised in the
Company’s firancial statements as at balance sheet date:

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
[Rs. in Lakhs) [Rs. in Lakhs)

Non Current

Gratuity 8243 86.42

Total Non Current 82.43 86.42

Current i

Gratuity 23.28 22.43

Total Current 23.28 22.43

Movement In net defined benefit {asset) ability
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to tha closing balances for net defined benefit {asset) liability
and its components:

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 3%, 2022
{Rs. in Lakhs} {Rs. in Lakhs)
Defined Benefit Obligation at the beginning of the year 108.85 176.68
Current service cost 15.15 30.26
Past service cost - -
(Gain)/ Loss on settlements / curtailments {0.65)
Interest expense/{income) 5.76 8.86
Total amount recognised in profit and loss 20,91 38.47
Remeasurements
Return cn plan assets, excluding amount included in interest
expense/{income) -
{Gain )/loss from change in demographic assumptions
[Gain )/loss from change in financial assumptions [4.94) (1.72)
Experience (gains)/losses 24,40 {1.71)
Actual Return on Plan assets - -
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income 19.46 (3.43)
Employer contributions - -
Benefit payments {43.51) (102.87}
Defined Benefit Obligations at the end of the year 105.71 108.85




Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Standalane Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 (continued)

Particalars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

[Rs. in Lakhs) {Rs. in Lakhs)
Present value of funded obligations - -
Fair value of plan assets - -
Surplus of funded plan - -
Unfunded plan 105.71 108.85
Surplus of gratuity plan 105.71 108.85
Expected Future Cashflows

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

{Rs. in Lakhs} {Rs. in Lakhs)
Year 1 23,28 22.42
Year 2 20.89 18.90
Year 3 17.34 17.36
Year 4 14.38 14.58
Year 5 11.98 12.10
Year 6-10 35.71 36.06
Significant estimates: Actuarial assumptions and sensitivity
The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

{Rs. in Lakhs) [Rs. in Lakhs)
Discount rate 7.15% 5.90%
Salary escalation rate 8.00%, 8.00%

1ALM (2012-14) 1ALM (2012-14)
Mortality Rate Ultimate Ultimate
The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions Ts:

Impact on defined benefit obligation
Increase in assumption (100 bps) Decrease in assumption {108 bps)
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
{Rs. in Lakhs} {Rs. in Lakhs) {Rs. in Lakhs) {Rs. in Lakhs)

Discount rate 102.07 104.08 105.63 112.26
Salary escalation rate 109.56 112.42 102.07 104,12
Expected Return on plan assets = = - =

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change inan assumption while hiolding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this i ualikely to occur,

and changes in some of the assumpticns may be correlatad .

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the priar period.

C. Accumulated Compensated Absences

The Company provides for accumulated compensated absences as at the balance sheet date on the basis of an actuarial valuation. The Company
recognized Rs. (18.55) Lakhs (Previous year. Rs,79.60 Lakhs) for Compensated Absences in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 {continued)

26} Financlal risk Management
As Non- Deposit NBFC having asset size of less than 5000 CR-The Leverage Coverage Ratla [LCR) and disclosures are not applicable.
Framework and Procedures on liquidity risk are provided below

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from Financials Instruments:
(i) Markat risk

{ii) Credit pisk

{iif) Liquidty risk

Risk Management framework

The Company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the Establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk Management framework. The board of
directars has established the Risk Management Committee, which is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company’s risk Management policies, The
committee reports regularly to the board of directars on its activities.

The Company’s risk Managemeant policies ara established to fdentify and Analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk Limits and Contral and to
Maritor risks and adherence to Limits. Risk Management pelicies and Systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market concitions and the Company’s
activities. The Company, through its training and Management standards and procedures, aims te maintain a disciplined and eenstructive contrel environment in
which ali employees understand their roles and obligations.

The audit committee oversees how managemeant monitors compliance with the Company’s risk management pelicies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of
the risk management framework in relation to tha risks facad by the Comnpany. The audit committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit
undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reperted to the audit committee.

{i) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices will affect the company's income and is exposed to risk such as-

a) Interest rate risk

b} Currency risk

The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposuras within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

a} Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises fram the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect the fair value or cash flows of the financial assets and financial liabilities.
Narmally, the Company's business is exposed ta interest rate risk as a result of mismatches or gaps in the amounts of assets and liabilities and off-balance-sheet
instruments that mature or reprice in a given period. The Company manages this risk by matching the assets and liabilities through risk management strategies,

The table below details the exposure of the Company to interest rate risk
{Rs. in Lakhs)
Partlculars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Fixed rate

Financial assets 81,377.81 16,715.89
Financial liahilities - -

Floating rate instruments
Financial assets o 24,802.65
Financial liabilities - 5

The interest rate sensitivity of the incoma statement measures the effect of assumed changes in interest rates on the net intarest income for ohe year, based on the
interest bearing financial assets and liabilities held at year end. The interest rate sensitivity in the income statement is the impact of changes in interest rates on the
fair value of floating rate lozns [working cagitel demand Joan 2nd bank overdraft) and floating rate loans given (dealer funding) as at the year end.
The following table reflects the effects of 50 bps to 100 bps basis points change in interest rate curve on the income statement with all other variables held constant:
[Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Decrease by 50bps to 100 bps:
- Impact on income statement - (246.73)
- Other Comprehensiva Income




Volkswagen Finance Private Limited
Motes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 21, 2022 {continued)

b) Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company is exposed to foreign
exchange rates on account of payables outstanding in the financial statements. Gutstanding positions are menitered on a periodical basis to ensure that the positions
are within established limits.
The company's exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of reporting period expressed are as fallows:

{ Rs. In Eakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Financial Liahilities

Payaoble to Related Farties

EURC (net of receivables) 130.89 820.12
Other Payables
Euro 1374 14.74

The Sensitivity of Profit nd Loss and OCl to changes in the exchange rates are as follows:
The Company has considered the maximum price movement in the respective currency during the year as Sansitivity benchmark for the
purpose of Foreign Currency Sensitivity Analysis

{ Rs. in Lakhs}
Particulars March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

Adverse change in foreign exchange rate based on previous 12
months movement in exchange rate
-Impact on income statement

EURD (5.34) {46.31)

SEK

GBP

- Other Comprehensive Income

ii} Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a finandlal instrument falls to meet its contractual obligations, and arises
principally from the Company's receivables fram customers and loans and advances. Credit risk encompasses both, direct risk of default and the risk of detericration
of creditwerthiness as well as concentration of risks.

[a) Expected Credit Loss measurement

Ind A5 109 outlines a “three-stage’ model for impalrment based on changes in credit quality since intial recognition wherein if a financial instrument that is not credit-
impaired on initial recognition is classified in Stage 1. If a significant increase in credit risk ['SICR’) since initlal recognition fs identified, the financial instrument is
moved to Stage 2 but is not yet deemed to be credit-impalred and if the financial instrument is credit-mpaired, the financial instrument is then moved ta Stage 3.
Purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets are those financial assets that are cradit-impaired on initial recognition and are taken to Stage 3

The general approach is used for financial assets measured at amortized cost, financial assets [debt instrumeants) whose changes in fair value are recognized in other
cemprehensive income and for irrevocable credit commitments unless there is already objective evidence of impairment on initial recognition. Financial assets are
broken down into three stages in the general approach. Stage 1 consists of financial assats that are being recognized for the first time or that have not demonstrated
any significant increase In probability of default since initial recagnition. In this stage, the model requires the calcuiation of an expected cradit loss for the next twelve
manths. Stage 2 consists of financial assets for which there is an significant increass in credit risk. Firancial assets demonstrating objective indications of impairment
are allocated to Stage 3. In Stages 2 and 3, an expected credit loss is calculated for the entire remaining maturity of the asset.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30 days past due. For tha whelasale portfolio, the eredit risk
is assumed to have been increased based on change in the risk class according to the master scale as of reporting date is compared with the risk class according to
master scale as of initial recognition
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Nates to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 (continued)

The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when:

-the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit cbligations to the Company in full, without recourse by the Company to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or
-tha financial assets is 51 days or more past due

-For whalesale portfolio, it alse depends on the risk class as per the master scale of the company

In the case of financiz| assets already impaired on initial recognition and classified as purchase originsted and impaired assets (“POCI") for the purposes of the
disclosures, the provision for credit risks is recognized in subsequent measurement on the basis of the cumulative changes in the expected credit loss for the entire
life of the asset concerned. Any financial Instrument already classified as impaired on initial recognition remains in this stage until it is derecognized.

Both historical information, such as average histarical default probabifities for each portfalio, and forward- looking information is used to determine the
measurerment parameters for calculating the provision for credit risks.

Reviews are regularly carried out to ensure that the credit risk provisions are aperopriate. Uncollectinla loans or receivables that are already subject to a workout
pracess and for which all collateral has been recovered and all further options for recovering the loan or receivable have been exhausted are written off based on the
management's decisions. Any provision allowances previously recognized are utilized. Income subsequently collected in connection with loans or recsivables already
written off s recognized in profit or loss.

Loans are reported in the balance sheet at the net carrying amount. The provision for credit risks relating to off-balance sheet revocable credit commitments is not
recognized since the same are uncenditionally cancellable commitments.

The Company does not recognize provision for credit risks for receivables and cash & cash squivalents since they carry low credit risk.

b) Collaterat and other credit enhancements

The Company emplays a range of tools to reduce credit risk. The Company saeks collateral coverage, assignment of contract proceeds and other forms of protection
te secure lending and minimize credit risks wherever possible. The Company’s borrowing agreements also include legally enforceable netting arrangements for loans
and deposits enabling the Company to consolidate the customer's various accounts with the Company and either transfer cradit balances to cover any outstanding
borrowings or freeze the credit balances until the customer settlas their autstanding obligations to the Company.

Caollateral held varies, but may include:

- Underlying vehicles in case of retail pertfolio

- Residential and commercial real estate property
- Lang

- Bank guarantee

The Company’s policies regarding obtaining collateral have not significantly changed during the reporting period and there has been no significant change in the
overall quality of the coliateral held by the Company since the prior peried.
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 [continued)

Tha below table provides guantitative information of collateral for credit

{Collaters! Coverage - Value of collatera’ available ta mf

impaired assets under Stage 3
tigate the credit exposure)

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Loan To Value {LTV] range

Gross value of loan in stage 3

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Upto 50% C
pto 50% Coverage B 29.800.56
51% - 70%
% % Coverage B 1,199.93
71% - 100% Covera
e . 471
[Above 100% coverage
2 31,005.20
€) Credit risk profile
March 32, 2023
{Rs. in Lakhs)
Retail Portfollo
ECL staging
Rating Stage 1 Stag_e 2 Stage 3
12-month Lifetime Lifetime Total
ECL ECL ECL
Gross carrying amount -
Less: Loss allowance -
{arrying amount -
{Rs. in Lakhs}
Wholesale Portfolio
ECL staging
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage3
Categor
il 1Z-month Lifetime Lifetime Total
ECL ECL ECL
Gross carrying amount 8,696.0¢ 8,696.09
Less: Loss allowance 389.58 380.58
Carrying amount 8,206.51 8,306.51
Moverment In Gross Carrying Amount
[Rs. In Lakhs)
ECL staging
N Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Particulars
12-month Lifetime Lifetime Total
Exposure Exposureg Exposure
Gross carrying amount as at March 31,2022 7.511.34 3,002.99 31,005.21 41,518.55
Transfers: =
Transfer from Staga 1 to Stage 2
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1 3,002.99 (3,002.99)
Transfer from Stage 2 tc Stage 3
Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 2
Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 3
Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 1
New facility added during the period
Increase in loan exposure in existing loan faellity 5,605.14 - 5,605.14
Decrease In lvan exposure in existing loan facility (4,757.12) (1,731.185)
Loans de-recognized during the
period other than write-offs {2,666.28) (29,085.28)
Decrease in loan exposure due to write off (188.79)
Gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2023 8,696.09 2.00) 8,695.09
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Notes ta the Standalone Financial Statements far the year ended March 31, 2

Movement in Provislon

023 {continued)

{Rs. in Lakhs)

ECL staging
Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12-month Lifetime Lifetime Total
Exposure Exposure Expasure
Provisicn amount as at March 31,2022 180.88 73.90 22,162.80 22,427.58
Transfers: -
Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 2 [78.90) {78.90)
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1 78.80 78.90
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3
Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 2
Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 3
Transfer from Stage 3 1o Stage 1
New facility added during the period
Increass in loan exposure in existing loan facility 170.00 1,322.00 1,492.00
Decrease in loan exposure in existing loan facility
Loans de-recognized during the period other than write-offs (40.20) {23,296.01) (23,335.21)
Decraase in loan axpesure due to write off (188.79)
Provision amount as at March 31, 2023 380 55 {0.00} {0.00) 380.58
March 31, 2022
{Rs. in Lakhs)
Retail Portfolio
ECL staging
Rating Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12-month Lifetime Ufetime Total
ECL ECL ECL
Gross carrying amount 298.58 - 3,024.09 3,322.67
Less: Less allowanca 8.19 = 2,510.13 2,519.32
Carrying amount 289.3¢ - 513.96 803.35
{Rs. in Lakhs)
Wholesale Portfolio
ECL staging
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Category 12-manth Lifetime Lifetime Total
ECL ECL ECL
Gross carrying amount 7,212.77 3,002.89 27,981.11 38,196.87
Less: Loss allowance 171.69 76.29 19,655.28 19,903.26
Carrying amount 7,041.08 2,926.70 8,325.83 18,293.61
Movement in Gross Carrying Amount
{Rs. in Lakhs}
ECL staging
N Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
fadticylars 12-month Lifetime Lifetime Total
Exposure Exposure Exposure
Gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2021 2,03,726.96 31,218.75 52,502,400 2,87,448.10
Transfers; =
Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 2 (451.75) 451.75 - -
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1 1,542.37 {1,542.37) - -
JFransfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3 - {240.94) 240.94 =
Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 2 - - - 5
Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 3 (848.87) - 948.87 -
Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 1 - - - -
New facility added during the period 3,629.78 - 3,629.78
increase in loan exposure in existing loan facility - - -
Dacrease in loan exposure in existing loan facility (1,99,887.15} (26,884.18) {22,221.07) (2,48,092.41}
Leans de-recognized during the periad other then write-offs - - -
Decrease in loan exposure due to write off - - (465.93) (465.93)
Gross carrylng amount as at March 31,2022 7,511.34 3,002.98 31,005.21 41,519.55
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 {continued)

Movement in Provislon

{Rs. in Lakhs)
ECL staging
. Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Particulars 12-month Lifetime Ufetime Total
Exposure Exposure Exposure

Provision amount as at March 31, 2021 2,215.12 3,598,09 31,032.35 36,845.56
Transfers: -
Transfer fram Stage 1 1o Stage 2 (23.15) 23.15 = &
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1 3.87 (3.87) - -
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3 - {110.67) 110.67 -
Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 2 - - - -
Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 3 {83.57) - 83,67 -
Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 1 = - - -
New facility added during the period - 162.3% 162.39
Increase in loan exposure in existing ican facility - - -
Decrease in foan exposure in existing loan facility {1,531.29) (3,590.20) (8,557.96) {14,119.44}
Loans de-recognized during the periad other than write-offs -
Deciease in loan exposure due to write off (465.93) {465.93)
Provision amount as at March 31, 2022 180.88 78.30 22,162.80 22,422.58
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 {continued)

27} Financial instruments - Fair value measurement

The fair value is the amount at which financial instruments could be sold on fair terms as of the re

securities) were available, we have used these prices without modification for measuring fair value. If no market prices were availahble, the fair values for

loans/receivables and liabilities were calculated by discounting using a maturity-matched discount rate appropriate to the risk,

27.1) Carrying amounts of the financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy,

are presented below:

porting date. Where market prices (e.g. for marketabia

[Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2023 Mareh 31, 2022
Amortized Cost FYTOC FVTPL Amortized Cost FVTOC! FVTPL
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 73,352.10 - 53,971.79 -
Bank bal'fznces other than cash and 872 } 7,500.41 .
cash equivalents
Receivables
{(} Trade receivahles 126.10 - 764,15 -
(11} Other receivables 482,77 - 1,400.35 -
lLoans 8,306.51 - 19,096.56 -
Investment 9,019.71 9,019.71
Other Financial assets 439,04 - 419.64 -
Total financial assets 91,784.95 - 92,174.05 -
Financial liabilities
Payables
{1} Trade payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises ° i 11.95 N
(ii} total outstanding duss of creditors
other than micro enterprises and small 72.08 - 1,136.32 -
enterprises
{ll) Other payables 86.86 - 723.43 o
Cther financial Hahilities 285,91 - 601.52 -
Lease Liability 1,128.38 - 1,474.54 =
Total financial liahilities 1,583.23 - 3,947.76 -

27.2) Fair Value:

The Company does not have any financial assets and financial liabilities which are valued at fair value. Fair value of the the financial assets and financial

liahilities which are not measured at fair value {including their levels in their fair value hierarchy,

reasonable approximation of fair value,

Investment and Debt securities, the carrying value and fair value are approximately close to each other,

are presented below), When the carrying amount s a
the fair value of the financial assets or liabllities have been not disclosed, For all financial instruments other than Loans,
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statemants for the year ended March 31, 2023 {continued)

(i} Fair value of financials assets and lfabikities

March 31, 2023 {Rs. in Lakhs)
Carrying amount Fair value
Particulars
Arnortized Cost FVTOCI FVTPL Levell Level 2 Level 3
loans 8,306.51 - - - 8,306.51
Debt securities (Non convertible
debentures) ) ) B )
Investment 9,019.71 2,206.50
March 31, 2022 {Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Carrying amount Fair value
Amaortized Cost FYTQCH FVTPL Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Loans 19,096.95 - - - 19,587.27
Debt securities (Non convertible
debentures} . ) B
Investment 9,019.71 10,635.72
{i} Fair value of Statement of Financial Pesition is presented below:
(Rs. in Eakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Carrying Value Fair Value | Carrying Value Fair Value
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 73,352.10 73,352.10 53,971.79 53,971.79
Bank balances other than cash and
cash equivalents 8.72 8.72 7.501.41 7,501.41
Receivables
{1} Trade receivables 126.10 126.10 764.15 764.19
(I} Other receivables 482.77 482,77 1,400.35 1,400.35
Leans 8,306.51 8,306.51 19,096.95 19,587.27
Investments 9,019.71 9,206.50 9,019.71 16,635.72
Other Financial assets 489.04 483.04 419.64 419.64
Total financial assets 91,784.9% 91,971.74 92,174.01 94,280.37
Finzncial liahilities
Payables
(1} Trade payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises e e 11.95 11.95
(i} total outstanding dues of creditors
other than micro enterprises and small
entarprises 72.08 72.08 1,136.32 1,136.32
(1) Other payables 46.86 86.86 723.43 723.43
Other financial liabilities 29541 295.91 601.52 601.52
Lease Liability 1,128.38 1,128.38 1,474.54 1,474.54
Total financial liabilities 1,583.23 1,583.23 3,947.76 3,947.75




Valuation techniques used to determine fair value:

The Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require measuremant of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

The Company has an establishad cantrel framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. This includes a risk team that has overal! responsibility for
overseeing all significant fair vafue measurements, including Level 3 fair values, and reports directly to the chief financial officer

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial assats by valuation technique:

The fair value of financial instruments are classified into three categories i.e, Level 1, 2 or 2 depending on the inputs used in the valuztion technique. The
hierarchy gives the highest prierity to quoted prices in active market for identical assets or liabilities (level 1 measurements) and lowest priority to
unobservable inputs (level 3 measurements).

The hierarchies used are as follows:

Level 1: Financial instruments measured using queted prices and that are traded in active market are categorized under level 1. The company has no financial
instruments which are categorized as level 1.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using observable market data and not the entity spacific
estimates. The Non Convertible debentures which are classified as debt securities have been categorized as level 2.

Lavel 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observahle market data, the instrument is included in level 3. The instruments are valued based
on quetad prices for the similar instruments but for which significant observables adjustments are required to reflect the difference between the instruments.
Loans have been includad in level 3 category.

Loans

The fair values of loans that do not reprice or mature frequently are estimated using discaunted cash flow medels. The discount rates are based on internal
estimation and consaquently for the purposes of level disclosures categorized under tevel 3. The discount factor used for fair valuation is derived using a
combinatfon of interpolated risk-free interest rates, risk premium, service fee and interpolated funding spreads as on valuation date. Input data used to carry
out the fair valration covers portfolio data, expected future cash flows, provision data and live LAN level data for each product in the portfolio.

Debt securities

The fair values of the Company’s non convertibla debentures are calculated based on a discounted cash Hlow model. The discount factor used for fair valuation
is derived using a combination of interpolated risk-free interest rates and credit-spreads of the Company as on valuation date, input data used to carry out the
fair valuation covers portfolic data and axpected future cash flows for each product in the portfolio.

Transfers between Levels
There are no transfers batween Level 1, 2 and 3 since there are no financial instruments at fair value under the category




Volkswagen Finance Private Limited
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 [continued)
28) Capitai

Capital management

The primary objectives of the capital management policy is ta ensure that the Company continuously complies with capital
requirements required by regulator, maintains strong credit ratings and healthy debt to equity ratios in arder to support its
business and to maximise shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments ta it according to changes In economic conditions and the
risk characteristics of its activities. In order to fund growth or comply with regulatory capital requirement, Company depends
on internal accrual or may raise additional capital. Company may adjust the amount of dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders.

The company uses the capital adequacy requirernent as prescribed by the regulatar as benchmark to monitor its capital
requirements. The status of capital adequacy requirements are mentioned below:

Regulatory capital

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As an March 31, As on March 31,
2023 2022

Net Own Fund {Tier 1) 84,378.53 87,742.12
Tier If 200.90 180.88
Total capital 84,579.43 87,922.99
Risk weighted assets 16,071.74 36,038.51
Tier | Capital ratio 525.01% 243.47%
Tier Hl Capitai ratio 1.25% 0.50%




Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 {continued)

29) Lease

Right to use of Asset {Rs. in Lakhs)
B March 31, 2023

Particulars

As at April 1, 2021 1855.63

Additions (Note 8)

Depreciation expensa 445,21

Deletion 11.45

As at March 31, 2022 1525.43

As at April 1, 2022 1,525.43

Additions {Note 8) (net)

Depreciation expense 388.91

Deletion 96.83

As at March 31, 2023 1,039.69

Lease Liability

{Rs. in Lakhs)

[Particulars March 31, 2023

As at April 1, 2021 1,722.10

Additions 119.73

Accretion of interest 112.73

Payments 480.02

Deletion -

As at March 31, 2022 1,474.54

As at April 1, 2022 1,474.54

Additions -

Accretion of interest 54.30

Payments 440.46

Deletion -

As at March 31, 2023 1,128.38

Total amount recognised in profit or loss (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 388.91 445.21
Interest expense on lease liabilities 94.30 124,19
Expense relating to short-term leases (included in other

expenses)

Expense relating to leases of low-value assets {included

in other expenses)

Variahle lease payments {includad In other expenses})

Total amount recognised in profit or loss 483.21 569.40

Some of the leases cantain extension and termination options. Such options are considered while
determining the lease term only. On this basis no such amounts included in the measurement of Lease

liabilities as at 31 March 2023,




Volkswagen Finance Private Limitad

Notes to the Standalane Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 (continued)

30) Foreign Currency transactions

{Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Year Ended March| Year Ended March 31,
31, 2023 2022

(a)Reimbursement of Expatriate Salaries 151.77 124,76
[b)Information Technclogy Support Charges 91.45 1,616.80
{c) Stock Audit Charges R 10.32
(d) Corporate Gaurantee Fee = 9.62
(e} Treasury Support Service - s
(f} Travelling Expenses 5.20 271
(g} Services/Consultancy Fees 18.18 19160
{h) Purchase of sofrware - -
[i} Allowances 16.75
(i) Reimbursement of Impat Salaries 130.15 94.43
The details of unhedged fareign currency exposure as at the year-end are as follows:

A) Payable* (in Lakhs)

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Fareign Currency Indian Rupees A;Or:;:nm Indian Rupees Amount in Foreign
equivalent St equivalent Currency
EURO 144,63 1.54 925.29 1G.86
SEK - - - -
B) Receivabie
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
n A ti . .
Fareign Currency Indian Rupees :or:;;;n Indian Rupees Amount in Foreign
ival Tval
equivalent Currancy equivalent Currency
EURO = 94.43 1.12

* Note: The details of urhedged foreign currency exposure includes year end provisions




Volkswagen Finance Private Limited
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 (continued}

31} Related Party Disclosures

| Related Parties and nature of relationship
I. Where control exists

a. Ultimate Holding Company Vefkswagen AG, Germany
b. Holding Company Volkswagen Finance Overseas B.V,Netherland
¢. Holding Company Volkswagen Financial Services A.G, Germany

li. Other Related Parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year

a. Fellow Subsidiaries Skoda Auto Volkswagen India Private Limited, India
Scania Commercial Vehicles India Pvt. Ltd
Volkswagen IT Services India Private Limitad
Volkswagen Bank GMBH
VWFS Digital Solutions GMBH
VW Seftware Asset Management GMBH
Volkswagen Semler Finans Denmark

h Subsidiary Kuwy Technolcgy Service Private Limited

e. Directors and Key Management Personnel Dr. Christian Rosswag, Managing Director and Chief Financial Gfficer

Mr. Ashish Deshpande, Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer {til! February
28, 2023)

Mr. Ralf Tiechmann, Non £xecutive Director

Mr. Subramanian Jambunathan, independent Director (till February 14, 2023)

Ms. Rupa Rajul Vora, Independent Director
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

32) Segpment Reporting

Motes to the $tandaleone Financial Statertents for the year ended March 31, 2023 {continued)

The Company did not have any continuing business during the current year and hence disclosure under segment reporting is not provided.

arch 31, 2022

{Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Retail Finance Dealer Finance Unallocated Total
Revenue 4,991.00 17,558.35
External 7,099.86 5,467.48
Inter segment 4,991.90 17,558.35
Total 7,099.86 5,467.48

6,624,386 2,660.54
Segment Expenses -7,761.78 3,797.97 {1,633.35) 14,897.80
Segment Result - profit / (loss) 14,361.65 1,669.51 - 14,897.80
Profit/{Loss} before Tax - - - 8,733.61
Tax Expense {Including Deferred Tax) - - - 6,164.21
Frofit/(Loss) After Tax before extraordinary ltems - - -48,530.15
Exceptionaf ltems -43,530.15 - 54,694.36
Profit/(Loss) After Tax S o
Other [nformation
Carrying Amount of Segment Assets 15,3237.14 7,02%.01 77,394.63 99,760.78
Carrying Amount of Segment Liahilities 924 505 6,796 8,224.31
Capital Expenditure 92 161 254
Depreciation / Amortisation 682.48 682.48

(i) Unallocated revenue mainly consists of Income from Insurance business
fi} Unallocated expenses comprise of expenses towards corparate social responsibility, directors sitting fees, conveyance expenses, foreign expense

loss and other administratative expenses.

{iii) Segment assets comprise mainly of retail loans, dealer finance loans, interest accrued on retail loans and dealer finance loans, receivable from
Interest subvention . Unallocated assets represent mainly other loans snd advances, defered tax assets cash and cash equivalents, advanca tax and TDS
and security deposits. Segment liabilities include payable for retail finance and dealer finance, trade and other payables and borrowings. Unallocated
liakilities mainly include cutstanding expenses and statutary liabilities, Carrying value of Sagment assets includes Asset held for sale of Rs. 130.41 Lakhs
{Previous year: Rs. 130.41 Lakhs) under Dealer Finance sagment.
{iv) The Company does not have revenue from its custamer who individually contributes more than 10 percent of the Company's revenue.




Volkswagen Finance Private Limited
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 (continued)

33) Disclesure on Restructured Advances

Year ended March 2023 (Rs. in Lakhs)
Type of Restructuring = Others
St No Asset Classification = Standard | Sub Standard | Doubtful Loss Total
Details L
Restructured Accounts as on April 1]No. of borrowers - 4 1 - 5.00
of the Financial Year {openin
1 fi {opening Amgunt outstanding - 456.87 846.82 - 1,303.69
igures)
Provision thereon - 209.92 314.23 - 524.15
: . No. of borrawers - - - 9 9.00
Fresh restructuring during the year
2 Amount cutstanding - - - 1,154.25 1,154.25
Provision thereon o - 415.31 415.31
No. of borrowers - 4 1 9 14,00
3 Recovery Amount autstanding 456,87 846.82 1,154.25 2,457.94
Provision thereon 209.92 314.23 415.31 939,46

No. of borrowers - - - - S

Upgradations  to  restructured
4 standard  category during  the Amount outstanding - = - - -

Financial Year —
Pravision thereon - - . 5 -

Restructured  standard  advances No. of borrowers - . - - =
which cease to attract higher

previsioning and / or additional risk
weight at the end of the Financial Amount outstanding 8 - - N -
Year and hence need not be shown

as restructured standard advances at|
the beginning of the next Financial
Year

Pravision thereon - s = = =

No. of borrowers - N B - B

Downgradations  of restructured
8 |accounts during the Financial Year ~ (Ameunt outstanding - - ; . N

Provision thereon S - - - _

No. of borrowers - & 5 . B

Write-offs of restructured accounts
7 during the Financial Year Amount cutstanding - . . R N

Provision therean - o - - -

Restructured Accounts as on March
31 of the Financia! Year
8 {closing figures)

No. of borrowers

Amount outstanding

Provision thereon

Note: Since the disctosure of restructured advance accounts pertains 1o secticn "Others", the first two sections, nantely, "Under CDR Mechanism”
and "Under SME Debt Restructuring Mecharism" as per format prescribed in the guidelines are not induded abave.

The amounts mentioned under ‘recovery' above are after consideration of sale of portfolio during the year.




Year ended March 2022

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Sl No

Type of Restructuring >

Asset Classification >

Details

Others

Standard

Sub Standard

Doubtful

Loss

Total

Restructured Accounts as on April 1
of the Financial Year {opening
figures)

Na. of borrowers

44

51

Amount outstanding

3,580

78176

806.11

1G0.00

5,267.49

Provision thereon

166

493,73

298.77

67.26

1,025.92

Ng. of borrowers

Fresh restructuring during the year

Amount outstanding

Provision thereon

Recovery

No. of borrowers

Amount cutstanding

3,580

325

100.00

3,963.80

Pravision thereen

166

284

67.26

501.77

restructured
during  the,

Upgradations to
standard  category
Financial Year

Ma. of borrowers

Amount outstanding

Provision thereon

Restructured  standard  advances
which cease to attract higher
provistaning and / or additional risk
weight at the end of the Financial
Year and hence need not be shown

No. of borrowers

Amount outstanding

as restructured standard advances at
the beginning of the next Financial
Year

Provision thereon

No. of borrowers

Downgradstions  of  restructured
accounts during the Financial Year

Amount outstanding

Provision thereen

Write-offs of restructured accounts
during the Financial Year

No. of borrowers

Amount outstanding

Provision thereon

Restructured Accounts as on March

No. of borrowers

4

i

5

31 of the Financial Year
(closing figures)

Amount cutstanding

456.87

846.82

'1,303.59

Provision thereon

209.92

314.23

524,15

Nate: Since the disclosure of restructured advance accounts pertains to section "Others"

and "Under SME Deht Restructuring Machanizm"”

, the first two sections, namely, "Under CDR Mechanism"
as per format preseribed in the guidelines are not included above.




Volkswagen Finance Private Limited
Notes to the Standalene Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 (continued)

34)

35}

The Company has certain dues to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,

2006 {"MSMED Act'). The disclosures pursuant to the said MSMED Act are as follows:

{Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and
remaining unpaid as at year end

Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid
as at year end

Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the
appointed day during the year

Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered
under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year

Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the
MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year

Interest due and payable towards suppliers registerad under MSMED Act, for
payments already made
Eurther interest remaining due and payable for earlier years

11.95

0.01

The above information regarding small scale industrial undertakings and micre, small and medium enterprises have been
determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the company.

Contingent Liabilities and other Capital Commitments

Contingent liabilities not provided for in respect of {Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2023 { March 31, 2022
Disputed claims not acknowledged as debt - 194.00
Service tax matters under appeal 5,588.72 5,071.85
Income tax matters under appeal 673.55 673.55

The Company is of the opinion that the above demands are not tenable and expects to succeed in its appeals / defense
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iii.

Service Tax Matter

Company received show cause notice from Office of the Assistant Commissioner of Service Tax demanding service tax of
Rs. 2,537.76, Lakhs on certain transactions. The Company has disputed the said show cause notice and started paying
the service tax on those transactions under protest. The Commissioner of Service Tax had passed order dated February
20, 2017 confirming the stand taken by the department to pay service tax along with interest and penalty.

The Company has disputed the order passed by the Commissioner of Service Tax and has filed appeal befare The
Customs, Excise and Service Tax Appellate Tribunal {CESTAT) in the financial year 2017-18.

Accordingly, service tax matter in respect of which assessmant is pending is Rs. 5,071.85 Lakhs {March 31, 2022 Rs.
5,071.85 Lakhs) and the amount paid under protest is Rs. 2,534.08 Lakhs {March 31, 2022 Rs. 2,534.08 Llakhs), This is
being disputed by the Company and not provided for.

During the year the Company received a demand for non payment of service tax on the penalty interest charged to the
customers. The service tax amounts to Rs. 258.38 lacs alongwith interest and penalty of Rs. 516.87 lakhs.

Income Tax Matter

In respect of Income Tax matter, in FY 2015-16 the Company had received show cause notice for non deduction of
withholding tax on payment to non-residents. The company has disputed the said show cause notice and paid the
disputed liability under protest. The Income Tax Appelfate Tribunal {ITAT) has passed order confirming the stand taken
by the department to pay withholding tax along with interest and penalty. The Company is disputing the said order and
has filed an appeal with the High Court. The Company has also received penalty order under section 271C of The
Incorme Tax Act, 1261 which has been disputed by the Company and the appeal against the same has been filed with
Commissioner of Income Tax {Appeal).

For FY 2015-16 and FY 2016-17, Transfer Pricing Officer / Assessing Officer had made an adjustment for Information
Technology Support Services {ITSS) availed from its Associated Enterprise (AE). The assessment orders were passed for
both years treating the arm's length price of ITSS transaction as Nil. The TPO / AO replying on OECD guidelines on Intra
Group Services stated in the order that assessee did not satisfy the Need-Evidence-Benefit test and the arm's length
price {ALP} was determined to be Nil. The Company is disputing the said order and has filed an appeal with the
Commission of Income Tax {Appeals).

For FY 2015-16 and FY 2016-17, the Company has paid 20% of the total demand tax raised for each of the years. The tax
on IT Support Services adjustment of Rs. 266.21 Lakhs (March 31, 2022 Rs. 266,21 lakhs} and Rs. 318.14 Lakhs (March
31, 2022 Rs. 318.14 lakhs) for FY 2015-16 and FY 2016-17 respectively are disputed by Company and hence not provided
for.

Accordingly, Income tax matter in respect of which appeals have been filed is Rs. §73.55 Lakhs {March 31, 2022 Rs.
673.55 Lakhs) and Rs. 44.60 Lakhs (March 31, 2022 Rs. 44.60 Lakhs) had been paid under protest. This is being disputed
by the Company and hence not provided for.

Capital Commitments :
Estimated value of contracts in capital account remaining to be executed is Rs. Nil lakhs (March 31, 2022: Rs.14.45 lakhs)

Letter of Support to subsidiary:

The Company has pravided a Letter of Support to its subsidiary to invest additional equity upto Rs.15,000 lakhs if
required, to take care of its liquidity till end of 2024.



36)

Corporate social responsibility expenses

(1) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year: ( Rs. in Lakhs) 34.62
{ii) Amount spent during the year on: (Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars Paid Yet to be paid Total
Construction, acquisition of any asset Nil Nil Nil
On purposes other than the above* 34.62 - 34.62

* The above expenditure relates to donation into PM Cares Fund.
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limited
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 (continued)

39)

Disclosures under Non-Banking Financial Companies - Corporate Governance {Reserve Bank} Directions, 2015

Capital
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(Rs. in Lakhs} {Rs. in Lakhs)

a) CRAR {%) 526.26% 243.97%
b) CRAR — Tier | Capita! {%) 525.01% 243.47%
c) CRAR - Tier I Capital (%) 1.25% 0.50%
d) Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier-ll = a
e Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt : .

The Company has apglied zero risk weight to the un-drawn credit facility in computation of the Capital Adequacy Ratio
considering the same is unconditionally cancellabie by the Company at any point of time.

Additional Disclosures
Provisions and Contingencies

Under the head Expenditure in Statement of Profit and Loss

March 31, 2023
[Rs. fri Lakhs)

March 31, 2022
{Rs. in Lakhs)

a) Provisions for depreciation on Investment = =

b) Expected Credit Loss {22,033.00) {14,422.98)

c} Provision made towards !ncomne tax {including - 8,733.61
Deferred Tax)

Concentration of Advances, Exposures and NPAs

Concentration of Advances

Particulars March 32, 2023 March 31, 2022
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)
Total Advances to twenty largest borrawers 8,696.08 34,818.48
Total Outstanding Advancas 8,696.09 41,519.54
Percentage to Total Advances 100.00% 83.86%
Concentration of Exposures
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(Rs. in Lakhs) {Rs. in Lakhs)
Total Exposure to twenty largest borrowers / customers 8,6%96.09 24,818.48
Total Exposure to Customers 8,696.00 41,519.54
Percentage to Tota! Exposure 100.00% 83.86%
Concentration of NPAs
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(Rs. In Lakhs) {Rs. in Lakhs)
Total Outstanding to four largest borrowers / customers - 13,421.432
Tatal Outstanding Advances - 41,519.54
Percentage to Total Advances . 32.33%




Volkswagen Finance Private Limited
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2023 {continued)

Sector-wise NPAs

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Ni Rs, |
Sectors (Rs. in Lakhs}) (Rs. in Lakhs})
Percentage to Total Percentage to
T t
e Advances e Total Advances
a) Agriculture & allied activities - =
b} MSME - -
c) Corporate borrowers - -
d) Services = -
e Unsecured personal loans e -
f) Auto foans and other refated loang - 31,005.20 74.68%
g) Other personal loans - -
Movement of NPAs
Particulars Marcl:l 31, 2023 Marcl:l 31,2022
{Rs. in Lakhs} [Rs. i Lakhs)

a) Net NPAs tc Net Advances (%) 0.00% 46.30%,
la} Movemnent of NPAs {Gross)

i) Opening balance 31,005.21 52,502.40

ii) Additions during the year - 1,189.82

i) Reduction during the year {31,005.21} (22,687.00)

iv) Closing balance {0.00) 31,005.21
b) Movement of Net NPAs

i} Opening balance 8,842.41 21,470.04

i) Additicns during the year - 995,48

i) Reduction during the year (8,842.42) (13,623.11)

iv) Closing balance - 8,842.41
) Movement of provisions for NEAs {excluding

provisions on standard assets)

i] Opening balance 22,162.80 31,032.35

i} Provisians made during the year 1,322.00 194.34

fii) Write-off 188.79 {465.53)

iv} write-back of excess provisions {23,673.59) (8,597.96)

v} Closing balance - 22,162.80




Vaolkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the
il

Customer Complaints

year ended March 31, 2023 [continued)

st No. Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Complaints received from customers
No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the

1 year 11 0

2 No. of complaints received during the year 315 525

3 No, of complaints disposed during the year 326 514

3.1 of which, no, of complaints rejected 0

4 No. of complaints pending at the end of the year o] 11
Maintainable complaints received from the
office of Ombudsman 4] o]
No. of awards implemented within the

5 stipulated time (other than those appealed) NA

Note- All the complaints outstanding at the year end were resalved subsequent to the Bzlance Sheet date,

Top five grounds of complaints received from customers

% increase/ decrease
in the number of

Number of

OFf 5, number of

Grounds of complaints, Number of complaints received compfaints complaints

{i.e. complaints relating Number of complaints pending at the beginning complaints received over the previous pending at the pending beyond

to) of the year during the year year* end of theyear 30 days

1 2 3 4 5 6

March 31, 2023

NOC related [ 258 - -

CIBIL refated 2 21 = =

TOS related 2 14 - -

Others 1 22 = -

Total 11 315 - -
March 31, 2022

NOC related - 279 € -

Overdue charges related - 58 - -

DS related - 28 2 -

Foredlosure related 25 - -

Collection related - 24 = -

Others - 111 3 -

Total 525 11 ]

*There is a change in the customer compiaints category in current year as compared t

¢ previous year, hence theese details are not given.




Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Standzlene Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 (continued)

v Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators

The Company has obtained Registration No. CAG142 to act as a Corporate Agent under the Insurance Act 1938 {IV of
1938} from Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority (fRDA) and the same expired on 31.03.2022 and the

company has not renewed the same.

v Disclosure of Penalties imposed by the Reserve Bank of India {RBI) and other regulators
Na penalties imposed by RBI or any other Regulator during the current year & previous year.

v Ratings assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year

Rating Agency: India Ratings & Reaserch Private Limited

During the year, Company has obtained below mentioned credit rating on different dates for different products,

Date of Rating Rating Agency Commercial Paper Others
06-Aug-21 ICRA Limited Withdrawn NA
04-Oct-21 India Ratings & Research Private Limited Withdrawn MA
22-Nov-21 India Ratings & Research Private Limited Withdrawn NA
31-Mar-22 India Ratings & Research Private Limited Withdrawn NA
01-Jul-22 India Ratings & Research Private Limited Withdrawn NA

. i Non Convertible

Date of Rating Rating Agency Debentures Others
04-Oci-21 incfa Ratings & Research Private Limited Withdrawn NA
22-Nov-21 India Ratings & Research Private Limited Withdrawn NA
31-Mar-22 India Ratings & Research Private Limited Withdrawn NA
01-Jul-22 India Ratings & Research Private Limited Withdrawn NA

Date of Rating Rating Agency Bank Rating Others
04-Oct-21 India Ratings & Research Private Limited Long term Loan Withdrawn

rafing
04-0c¢t-21 India Ratings & Research Private Limited Short term loan Withdrawn
rating
22.Nov-21 India Ratings & Research Private Limited Long term Loan Withdrawn
rating
22-Nov-21 India Ratings & Research Private Limited Short term loan Withdrawn
rating
31Mar-22 Iadlia Ratings & Research Private Limited Long term Loan Withdrawn
rating
31-Mar-22 India Ratings & Research Private Limited Short term loan Withdrawn
rating
01-Ful-22 india Ratings & Research Private Limited Long term Loan Withdrawn
rating
01-Jul-22 India Ratings & Research Private Limited Short term loan Withdrawn
rating
vii  Extent of financing of parent company products
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Particulars
Loan outstanding as at year end out of the amount financed to parent ) 40,72025
company products
Company Portfolio 8,696.09 41,519.54
Percentage of financing for parent product upan Company's portfolio 0.00% 98.07%
viill  Investments:
March 31,2023 | March31, 2022
Particulars
Gross Vaiue of Investments 9,019.71 9,019.71
Pravisian for Depreciation on Investments - 3
Net Value of Investments 5,019.71 9,019.71
Movement of provisions hald towards depreciation on investments - -
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limited
Notes to the Standalane Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 (continued)

% The Company has no disclosures to make in respect of the following items as the refevant items are either NIL or Not
Applicable

Derivatives: |Forward Rate Agreement / Interest Rate Swa ps

Notional Principal of Swap Agreements

Losses which would be incurred if counterparties failed to fulfilf their obligations under the agreemants

Colfateral required by the NBFC upon entering into swaps

Concentration of credit risk arising from the swaps

The fair value of the swap book

Exchange Traded interest Rate Derivatives

Notional Principal amount of exchange traded interest rate derivatives undertaken during the year
Natienal Principal amount of exchange traded interest rate derivatives outstanding as at March 31, 2018
Notional Principal amount of exchange traded interest rate derivatives outstanding and not "highly
Mark-to-market value of exchange traded interest rate derivatives outstanding and not "highly effective”

Quantitative Disclosyres

Derivative (Notional Principal Amount)
Marked to Market Positions

Credit Exposure

Unhedged Exposure

Securitisation: |No of SPvs sponscred by the NBFC for securitisationtransactions

Total amount of securitised assets as per books of thesPvs sponsored

Total amount of exposures retained by the NBFC to comply with MRR as on the date of balarice sheet
Amount of exposures to securitisation transactionsother than MRR

Financial Assets sold to Securitisation / Reconstruction Company for Asset Reconstruction
No. of accounts

Aggregate value {net of provisicns} of accounts sold to SC/RC

Aggregate consideration

Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in earlier years
Aggregate gain / loss over net book value

Assignment transactions undertaken

No. of accounts

Aggregate value (net of pravisicns} of accounts sald to SC/RC

Aggregate consideration

Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in earlier years
Aggregate gain / loss over net bogk value

Details of non-performing financial assets purchased
No. of accounts purchased during the year
Aggregate outstanding

Of these, number of accounts restructured during the year
Aggregate cutstanding

Details of non-perfarming financial assets sold
No. of accounts sold

Aggregate outstanding

Aggregate consideration received

Residential Mortgages

Exposure to Real | Commercial Real Estate
Estate Sector investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS} and other securitised exposures
Indirect exposure
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other

Loans

Exposure to Direct investment in equity shares, canvertible bonds, convertible debentures and units of equity- oriented
Capital Market mutual furds the corpus of which is nat exclusively invested in corparate debt;

Advances against sharas / bonds / debentures or other, securities or on clean basis to individuals for
investrient in shares (including IPOs / ESOPs), convertible honds, convertible debentures, and units of
equity-oriented mutual funds;

Advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible Bonds ar convertible debentures or units of
equity orfented mutuai funds are taken as primary security;

Advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collateral security of shares or convertible
bonds or convertible debantures Or units of equity oriented mutual funds i.e. where the primary security

not fully cover the advances;
Secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued on behalf of stockbrokers and
market makers;

clean basis for meating promoter's contribution to the equity of new cempanies in anticipation of raising
resources;

Bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows / issues;

All exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both registered and unregistered)

Underwriting commitments in fespect of the primary issue of shares or convertible bonds or convertible
debentures or equity oriented mutual funds;

Financing to stock brokers for margin trading;
All exposures to alternate investment funds.

than shares / convertible bonds / convertible debentures / units of equity orfented mutual funds doas

sanctioned to corperates against the security of shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on

Concentration of [Total Deposits of twenty largest depositors
Deposits Percentage of Depasits of twenty largest depositors to Total Deposits of the NBEC

There

Other Disclosure During the year, there are no penalties tevied by RB! / other regulators

During the year, Companys has net postponed revenue recognition on account of pending uncertainties.
During the year, Companys has not made any draw down of reserves,

Company does not have any overseas joint venture / subsidiary,

are no SPVs sponsored by the Company

Disclasures required by paragraph 18 of Master Diraction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically important Non-
Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank} Directions, 2016 are given in Annexure |,




Vaikswagen Finance Private Limited

ANNEXURE | FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
MARCH 31, 2023

Schedule to the Balance Sheet of a Non-Depasit Taking Noen-Banking Financial Company
(as required in terms of Paragraph 18 of Master Direction - Non-Bariking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit
taking Company (Reserva Bank) Directions, 2016

(Al amaounts in Lakhs)
———— e

Liabilities Side

{1) [Loans and advances availed by the NBFCs inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid:
Particulars Amount cutstanding Amount overdue

(a) Debentures ; Securad S o
*Unsecured o S
{other than falling within the meaning of public deposits)i
{b) Deferred Credits - o
{c} Term Loans & o
{d} Intercorporate loans angd berrowing - S
(&) Commercial Paper & &
{f} Public Deposits# o 5
(g) Gther Loans - Working Cagital Demand Loan - -

- Bank Qverdraft - -

# Refer to note 1 below

(2} [Break-up of {1){T) above {Qutstanding public deposits inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid) :
Particulars Am ount outsianding Amount overdue

[a} In the form of Unsecured debentures - -
(b} In the form of partly secured debentures i e. debentures where there is a shortfall in the - -

(c) Other public deposits - -

Asset Side

Amount Outstanding

Break-up of Loans and Advances indluding bills receivables [other than those incluged in {4}
below];

()

{a) Secured -

(h) Unsecured* 8,696.09

{4) Break-up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assats counting towards AFC activities

{i) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors:

{a) Financial lease -
{b) Operating lease -

(i) Stock on hire including hive charges under sundry debtors;

[a) Assets on hire _
{b) Repossessed Assats .
{iii) Other loans counting towards AFC activities

{a) Loans where assats have been repassessed -
(b} Laans other than (a) above =

St |Break-up of Investments :

Current investments:
1. Quoted

{i} Sharas: (a} Equity -
(b} Preference -

(ii} Dabentures 2nd Bonds 2

(5} Units of Mutuz! funds =

{iv) Government Securities -

(v} Others (please specify} B
2. Unguoted

(i} Shares: (a) Equity
(b} Preference

{if) Debentures and Bonds
(fii) Units of Mutuai funds N

{iv} Government Securities =
(v} Qthers {Certificate of Deposits, Commercial Paper & PTC) -
* Excludes advance income tax/tax deducted at source {net of provisions} and other advances {not related to lending activity)
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limited
Netes to the Standalone Fi

Details of Sressed loans transferred during the year ended March 31, 2023

for the year endad March 31, 2023 (continusd)

(Rs. in Crores)

To ARC's

To Permitted Transferses

Particulars

No: of accounts

1396

Aggregate principal outstanding of loans transferred

290,85

Weighted averape residual tenor of the loans transferred

& Manths

MNet book value of Iuanstra_nsferred (at the time of transfer)

57.89

&g_gregate consideration

34.08

Detalls of Loans not in Default transferred during the year ended March 31, 2023

(Rs. in Crores)

To ARC's

To Permitted Transfersas

Te other transferees

Particulars

Na: of accounts

82

Ageregate principal outstanding of loans transferred

21.62

‘Weighted average residual tenor of the loans transferrad

14 Months

Net book value of loans transferred (at the time of transter)

21.22

_»kgregate consideration

18.25

Di¢tails of Loans transferred during the year endad March 31, 2022

[Rs. in Crores)

Particulars

To ARCs

To permitted transfaress

Te other transferees

No: of accounts

213

3574

;Agregate principal outstanding of loans trensferred

62.44

203.18

‘Weighted average residual tenar of the loans transferred

30 {Months )

23 Months

Net book value of loans transferred (_a; the time of transfer}

7.5

97.13

Aggregate consideration

1.82

17.43

Disclosure pursuant ta Circular No. DNBS.PD.CC.No 256 /03.10.42 / 2011-12 dated March 02, 2012 on monitaring of frauds, the frauds detected and reported for the year

amounted to Rs. Nil (Previous year Rs. Nil).

The Company has a precess whereby periodically all long term contracts are assessed for material foreseeabie losses, At the year end, the Company has reviewed and
ensured that adequate provision as required under any law/ accounting standzrds for matertal foreseeable losses on such long term contracts has been made i the

bocks of accounts.

Sureender of NBFC licence

During the year, the Company has made an application to the Reserve Bank of Indiz for sursender of its NBFC licance as the Company will not be canducting any financial

activity as its principal business.

Going Concern

The Company sold its NPA and Standzrd loans during the year. Further the Company has made an application to RBI for surrender of NEFC license. However based on
maturity pattern of assets and liabilities, projections for next year and adequate liquidity, ne material uncertainty exists indicating that the company is not capable of
meeting its liabilities. Considering the above factors financial statements have been prepared cn gaing concarn basis.




Volkswagen Finance Private Limited
Nates to the Standal Financial 5t: for the year ended March 31, 2023 {continued)
46 Discontinued Operations

The Cempany seld its NPA and Stzndard loans during the year. Further the Cormpany has made an application ta RBI for surrender of NBFC licence, Pursuant to the above
the financial assets of the Company (excluding fixed deposits) are less than 50% of the total assets of the company . Consequantly the Company does not have any
continuing business and therefore all income and expenses of the current and previous year are disclosed as “Discentinued Operations”.

47 i of subsldiary i and lean

The Company has made an investment in and advanced loans (including accrued interest) of Rs 9,019.71 fakhs and Rs. 8,696.09 lakhs respectively to Its subsidiary Kuwy
Technology Service Private Limited, The accumulated lpsses of this subsidiary are Rs. 12,179 lakhs as at March 31, 2023 and its netwarth is negative. The auditors of the
subsidiary company have included a paragraph in their audit report, regarding Material Uncertainty relating to subsidiary's ability to continue as a Going Concern.
Further, the auditors of the subsidiary have qualified their audit epinien relating to remeasurement of the liability arising on the Compulsory Convertihle Preference
Shares held by the Company in the Subsidiary as at March 31, 2023,

The subsidiary is scouting for strategic investment partners to further #ts growth, The Company has also provided a Letter of Suppert to the subsidiary to invest

additional capital upto Rs. 15,000 lakhs to take care of its lquidity needs till end of 2024. Accerdingly, the financial statements of teh subsidiary have been prepared ona
Going Concern basis.

The Company has chtained a fair valuation repert from an external valuer considering approved cash flows and conservative assumptions, based en which, the fair valua
is highar than the bock value of the investments.

The loan provided by the Company was due for repayment in August 31, 2023, which has been extended to October 31, 2023. The subsidiary has been regular in
payment of Interest and there has bean no defaults/delays during the year. Tha loan agreement includas a covenant on tha canversion of loan into share capital at the
discretion of the Cerpany at the time of its maturity.

Considering the above, the management believes that no impairment provision / additional provision is required on the investments and loans to the subsidiary.

43 Reduction of Share Capital
During the year the Company had filed petition with the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench {'NCLT’), to cancel 3,43,00,000 Category 'A' equity
shares af Rs. 10 each, fully paid up held by Volkswagen Finance Oversaas B.V. out of total existing paid up Category A’ equity share capital of the Company of INR
1,05,19,22,070 divided inta 10,51,92,207 equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up and cancel 34,7C,00,000 Category ‘B’ equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up held
by Volkswagen Financial Services A.G. out of total exfsting paid up Category ‘B’ equity share capital of the Company of INR 10,53,60,99,370 divided inte 1,05,36,09,937
equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up and that such reduction shall be effected by proportionately returning to Velkswagen Finance Overseas B.V. and Volkswagen
Financial Services A.G. an aggregate total amount of INR 3,01,60,82,000 (indfan Rupees Three Hundred and One Crores Sixty Lakhs and Eighty-Thres Thousand Only).
The Board vide circular resolution dated December 13, 2022 approved the withdrawal of petition filed for raduction of capital due ta delay in hearing of the mattar at the
court due to shartage of officers and paucity of time. Thereafter, upon receiving sharehclders’ approval on February 9, 2023 a fresh patition was filed with NCLT ta
cancel 5,82,90,000 Category "A’ equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up held by Volkswagen Finance Overseas B.V, out of total existing paid up Category 'A' equity
share capital of the Company of INR 1,05,15,22,070 divided into 10,51,92,207 equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up and cancel 58,83,78,000 Category ‘B’ equity
shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up held by Volkswagen Financial Services A.G, out of total existing paid up Categery ‘B’ equity share capital of the Company of INR
10,63,60,99,370 divided into 1,06,35,09,937 equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up and that such reducticn shali be affected by proportionately returning to
Volkswagen Finance Cverseas B.V and Volkswagen Financial Services AJG an aggregate tatal amount of INR 499,99,96,960 {Indizn Rupeses Four Hundred and Ninety-Nine
Crore Ninety-Nine Lakhs Ninety-Six Thousand Nine Hundred and Sixty Only). The matter was heard by NCLT on 8th June, 2023 and erder was passed approving the
same, The Company has subsequently repatriated the share capital on August 9, 2023,




Volkswagen Finance Privata Limited

Notes to the Standalons Financial Siatements for the vear ended March 31, 2023 (continued]

a4 Regulatory Disclosures
1) The Company dozs not have ary Benarm property, where any arceesding has been intiated o pending against the Company far kolaing any Benami
property

2} The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off

fne Company dues nut have ary charges or satisfaction which is vet o be repistercd Wit RUC bevond tha statutory penod

4) The Company has nol Uaded or wvested in Zivpta currency o Virteal Carrency duning the findncisl yeasr

53 fhe Company has ot advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other persen(s) or entitylies], including foraign enutes {Intermadiarses) with the
understarang that the intermadiany shall:

3] directly ot indirsctiy lend or mvest in other persons or entities 1dentified 1 any manner whatsoever by or on hebalf of the Lompany (Uihmate Bensfizanesi;
o

bj provice any guarantsee, security or tha ike o or on behalf of the Ultimate Benzfoanes;

£} The Company has not receiad any fund [rom any nersongs) or entitylies), including foregn entitizs {Funding Party; with the understanding {whether recorded
0 writing or otherwise) that tha Company shali:

a} eirectly or indirectly lend or mvest in othar gersoas or entives identified in any mannar whatioever by or on behaifl of the Funding Party {Uibmate
Beneficiarias] or;

B} provide any guarantee, security or tha ke on behalf of the U-timate Benckicianes,

7} The Company dogs nal have any such transactisn which 5 not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered o7 disclosed as income during the
vear in the {ax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 {such as, search or suivey or any other ralevaot provisions of the Incema Tax Act, 1961

8} The Company kas nat been dectared as walltul defaulter by any bank or Fnencial institution or government or any gavernment authority.

81 The Company coeas not have 3y immovable properly (other than groperties whare the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements aie duly exccuted in
favour of the lessee) whose titie deeds ar2 not held in the name of the Company.

1) the Zompany has not made any Leans or Advances I the natu e of inans that are gran
andar Companias Act, 2013, elther severally or jointly with any othe: gerson, that are

{a) repavable on demane or

{b} without specifying any terms or penad of repayment

o promoters, duectors, KM end 1hs related parties {as deflined

50 Frevious yeat fpjuies ave been regrouosd wher ever necessacy.

]
Hotes ta the Standalune Financial Statements referred Lo herein abovs form an inte; 3 fez firancial statenents.
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Chartered Accountants
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